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HOLELL TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS

PROUD OF OUR SCHOOLS - CONCERNED FOR OUR CHILDREN

FRONALD SANASAC {732) 751-2480 ext. 3801
Business Administrator/ FAX (732) 938-3964
Board Secretary EMAIL: rsanasac@howell.k12.nj.us

October 18, 2010

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Howell Township School District
Howell, New Jersey

Dear Members of the Board of Education:

It is with pleasure that we submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Howell
Township School District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This CAFR includes the District's Basic
Financial Statement prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the District. To the best of our knowledge and belief, data presented in
this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

¢ The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, Letter of Transmittal. List of Principal
Officials, and an Organizational Chart of the School District:

¢ The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditors’ Report and includes the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an
overview of the School District's financial position and operating results, and other schedules
providing detailed budgetary information;

¢+ The Statistical Section includes selected economic and demographic information, financial
trends, and the fiscal capacity of the School District, generally presented on a multi-year basis;

¢ The Single Audit Section — The District is required to undergo an annual audit in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1986, as amended, the U. S, Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations”, and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid”. Information related to this single
audit, including the independent auditor's report on the internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants, along with findings and questioned costs, if
any, are included in the single audit section of this report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Howell Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
GASB as established by Statement No. 14. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Howell
Township Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District continues to maintain a high quality of education, even though it is one of the largest K-8
districts in Monmouth County. The District provides a full range of programs and services appropriate to
grades K through 8. These include regular education, programs for the very able students (gifted and
talented), as well as special education for youngsters with disabilities in and out of district. Ten elementary
schools and three middle schools comprise the district's facilities. Although Southard School remains an
asset of the Howell Township Board of Education, the district consolidated the student population in the
other nine elementary schools, and is not utilizing Southard School for classroom purposes this school year.
The Board is presently investigating and pursuing options for the most useful and beneficial use of the
building.

Supervising district-wide goals is a district superintendent, an assistant superintendent for curriculum and
personnel, an assistant superintendent of pupil services, a business administrator/board secretary, four
district-wide curriculum supervisors, director of technology and three supervisors of special education. Each
K-5 elementary school has its own principal and share a vice principal. Two Howell Township Middle
Schools each have one principal and one and a half vice principals. One Howell Township Middie School
has one principal and one vice principal.

The Board of Education, comprised of nine members, each elected to three-year terms, meets on the first
and third Wednesday of each month for the regular Board Meeting and other times each month for
committee meetings. During its meetings the board determines district goals and priorities and conducts the
business of the Board of Education. Board meetings are open to the public and begin at 7:00 PM.

PTAs/PTOs/SEPAC (Special Education Parents Advisory Council) are highly active in the District and
provide community support for a variety of programs and activities for the children.

To maintain effective communications, the district produces four newsletters. Howell Highlights are sent to
all parents in the community, in order to keep them well informed of school and district events. The district
also utilizes its web site to publish the board agenda in an effort to keep all interested citizens apprised of
district operations and activities.

Each of the schools in the district follows the district-wide goals and educational approaches to the
education of children, while maintaining a unique personality that makes up that particular school. All
curricula in the district have been aligned to the New Jersey Common Core Standards.

The mission of the Howell Township School District is to educate students at all grade levels to achieve the
New Jersey Common Core Standards and challenge them to become skillful communicators, independent
thinkers, and life-long learners. In reaching their full potential, our children will develop individual, social,
and civic responsibility as well as respect for themselves and their environment. To this end the district has
developed a comprehensive curriculum for each grade and each subject area that is rich in content while
focusing on the individual needs of the students.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Continued)

Elementary Schools: Grades K through 5

Currently, there are nine grades K-5 elementary schools (Adelphia School, Aldrich School, Ardena School,
Greenville School, Griebling School, Land O'Pines School, Newbury School, Ramtown School. and Taunton
School) providing a comprehensive educational program.

The district's balanced literacy programs focuses on the development of phonics, phonemic awareness,
vocabulary, comprehension, and fluency. Writing is integrated throughout all disciplines.

Mathematics skills and concepts are presented using a variety of hands-on materials and activities. Stress
is placed on providing real-life meaningful experiences so that students develop conceptual understanding
and an appreciation for mathematics.

Inquiry and discovery are the foundations of the science program. The students develop a better
understanding of the world around them by developing experiments and applying the scientific method.

The units of instruction for the social studies program are theme-based and promote literacy in the areas of
geography, history, economics, and civics.

Students begin learning Spanish in kindergarten and continue through the fifth grade. The students learn
the language through conversational techniques, as well as develop an appreciation for the cultures that
speak Spanish. At the middle school level, all students participate in World Language instruction. Upon
entering the middle school, students may elect to either continue their studies in Spanish, or begin studies in
French.

At the middle school the Gifted and Talented program is expanded to provide math acceleration in grades
6", 7" and 8" with a rigorous enrichment course of study in science, social studies and language arts.
Throughout all K-5 schools enrichment cluster grouping is provided to students identified as gifted and
talented. In addition, at the elementary level, a self contained 4" and 5™ grade program is provided to those
students who also demonstrate giftedness.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND {TS SERVICES: (Continued)

Howell Township Middle Schools

Grades 6 through 8

Grades six through eight are housed at each of the district’s three middle schools. Each school is divided
into “houses.” Each "house’ is designed as a “school within a school.” The “houses’ are further divided into
teams. Each team has an assigned group of teachers and students. The team approach allows the faculty
to develop positive relationships with a relatively small group of students. The district has found this team
approach to be very successful at minimizing discipline problems and allowing the teachers to get a sense
of each student’s individual needs.

Special Education:

Special Education is an integral part of the educational system in the Howell Township Schools. Our
school district educates approximately 1,055 students classified eligible for special education and
related services. Our district provides a full continuum of services for students with disabilities.
Classes include preschool disabled, integrated preschool, regular classes with specialized support,
in-class resource, resource center pull out services and other special class programs. All students
are included with their general education peers to the maximum extent possible, and many students
are fully included in regular classes with assistance from paraprofessionals or Special Education
teachers. Our middle school program prepares our students with disabilities for their transition to
high school.

Core Curriculum Contents Standards

Our district is in line with the New Jersey Common Core Standards. All district curricula have been aligned
with the Standards.

Staff Development

The Howell Township Public Schools System provides its teaching and support staff with many opportunities
for professional development.

All professional development in Howell Township addresses the Eight Key Elements of High Quality
Professional Development and supports the Definition of Professional Development from the No Child Left
Behind Act. The professional learning opportunities are aligned with and support the New Jersey
Professional Development Standards for Teachers.

In the beginning of the school year all newly hired teachers receive intensive in-service, encompassing
training in instructional strategies, classroom management, curriculum, mentoring, technology, district policy
and security. Mentors are assigned to novice teachers to provide support throughout the school year.

Professional development days are built into the school calendar to enable teachers to attend sessions
related to instructional strategies, curricular updates, content standards, data driven decision making, and
district-wide grade level and department articulation meetings.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Continued)

Technology

District-Wide technology is used to enrich teaching and learning, facilitate communication among all
members of the educational community, and to increase productivity. All classrooms, computer labs, media
centers, and offices in each of the twelve schools and administrative buildings are linked together via local
and wide area voice and data networks. All administrators, teachers, and support staff members have
computing capability with high speed Internet access and are provided email and voice mail accounts. To
assist teachers and students in presenting information and collaborating in Internet and other computer
based projects together, all classrooms in the district are equipped with ceiling mounted LCD projectors
and/or projection devices capable of presenting images via a computer, the Internet, cable TV, or local video
sources such as VCR's and DVD players.

In addition, all schools are equipped with mobile student laptops that connect to the district network via
wireless access points located throughout the buildings. All building administrators have access to laptop
computers, allowing for complete mobility in utilizing technology for office productivity as well as teacher
evaluation activities.

Pupil Enrollment
The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the district over the last ten years. The table

presents the actual historical pupil enrollment, as of October 15, for the school years 2000-01 through 2009-
10.

Enroliment
School Year As of October 15
2000-01 7.427
2001-02 7,379
2002-03 7.424
2003-04 7,416
2004-05 7.333.5
2005-06 7259
2006-07 7289
2007-08 7080
2008-09 6920
2008-10 6783

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The rate of new home construction continues to stagnate and is reflected in a continued enrollment decline.
Current housing continues to turn over but the movement of young families with children has slowed.



3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Construction

Construction completed, the Howell Memorial Middle School opened in September, 2004. No additional
major construction initiatives have been undertaken. ‘

Pupil Services:
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New Assistive Technology devices for students with disabilities.
Teacher coach who is a Board certified Behavior Analyst.
Ongoing training in all areas relative to working with students with special needs.
Inclusion initiative for grades K-4.

Integrated Preschool Program.

Life Skills classrooms and instruction.

Crisis Management certification for staff.

Crisis Response Network.

Tools of the Mind Preschool curriculum.

Community-based instruction as appropriate.

Parent Outreach Services.
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Business:

The Business Office continued to be busy in the 2009-2010 school year. Accomplishmentinitiatives in this
school year were as follows:

“ The business office continued to streamline the entire purchase order cycle with the implementation
of new procedures.

« The Business Administrator continues as the certified purchasing agent, allowing the district to
increase the public bid threshold limit from $29,000 to $36,000.

< Streamlining of business functions through increased applications of technology.

Personnel:

The district employed 988 persons during the 2009-2010 school year. The certificated staff numbered 695
including 39 administrators and supervisors and 656 classroom teachers and educational support personnel
(nurses, guidance counselors, child study team members, etc.). 293 other employees, including
instructional assistants, school aides, bus drivers and attendants, secretaries and clerk-typists, and
custodial and maintenance employees were also part of the staff.

One of the greatest challenges in a school district is to retain high standards for its staff, especially, during a
period when acute teacher shortages in some areas persisted. The district was able to accomplish this
through a highly competitive recruitment and selection process. Additionally, an impressive array of in-
service opportunities allowed staff members to stay current and to improve their instructional skills; a
hallmark of a progressive and innovative schoo! district.

The district, for example, continued its new teacher mentoring program. All newly certified teachers and
most teachers new to the district were assigned mentors as well as supervisory advocates to assist them in
their first year. District administrators further provided these teachers with an extensive in-service program
designed to help them acclimate to their new working environment.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the district is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control system
designed to ensure that the assets of the district are protected from loss, theft or misuse; and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally-accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control system is designed to provide

reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and



(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

As a recipient of federal and state awards, the district also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and
grants related to those programs. This internal control system is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
district management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine adequacy of the internal

control system, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as
to determine that the district has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the voters of the municipalities. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the
special revenue funds, and the debt service fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is
reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at fiscal year end.

6. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute. The District has adopted a cash
management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under
the provision of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to
protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile liability
and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, fidelity bonds and
worker's compensation.



8. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Robert A. Hulsart & Company. CPA's, was
selected by the Board to perform the audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended and
the related OMB Circular A-133 and the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. The auditors’ report on the basic
financial statements and as well as both the required and other supplementary information is included in the
financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
single audit section of this report.

9. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Howell Township Board of Education for
their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of
our business office staff.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR, C.PA, PS.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Board of Education of the Howell Township School
District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Howell Township Board of Education’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance, Department of Education. State of New Jersey. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects.
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Howell Township Board of Education, in the
County of Monmouth. State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2010. and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows. where applicable. thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 18. 2010, on our consideration of the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations.
contracts and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on comphance. This report is
an integral part of our audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

1L

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.PA., ALM.A, P.S.A. (1959-1892 Telecopier:
ROBERT A. HULSART, C.PA, RM.A, PS.A ( ) (732) 280-8888 2607 Hurtey Pond Road - Suite 100
. P.O. Box 1409
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR.,C.PA, PS.A e-mail: Wall, New Jersey 07719-1409
rah@monmouth.com (732) 681-4990



12,

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 13
through 18 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Howell Township Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations: and New Jersey
OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid
respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT A. HULSART AND COMPANY

Robert A. Hulsart

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 18. 2010
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
HOWELL TOWNSHIP

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Howell Township Public School District’'s financial performance provides
an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance as a whole; it
should be read in conjunction with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report's (CAFR) Letter of
Transmittal that is found in the Introductory Section, and the School Board's financial statements found in
the Financial Section and the notes thereto.

The MD&A is a element of the Required Supplementary Information specified in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - “Basic Financial Statement and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments” issued in June 1999.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2010 are as follows:

¢ General revenues accounted for $114,117,211 in revenue or 97% percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and
contributions, and capital grants and contributions accounted for $3,295 689 or 3% percent to
total revenues of $118,226,613.

¢ Total assets of governmental activities increased by $15,150,866 as cash and cash
equivalents decreased by $1.677,177 receivables increased by $3,608,677 and capital
assets decreased by $1,365,022.

¢ The School District had $118,323,888 in expenses; only $3,295,689 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
(primarily property taxes) of $118,226,613 were adequate to provide for these programs.

¢ The General Fund had $105,397,402 in revenues and $106,300,054 in expenditures.
Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Howell Township Public School District as a
financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district’'s finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. In the case of Howell Township Public School District, the General Fund is by far the
most significant fund, with the Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project’s Fund also having significance.

The School Board's auditor has provided assurance in his independent Auditor's Report, located
immediately preceding this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements
are fairly stated. A user of this report should read the Independent Auditor's Report carefully to ascertain
the level of assurance being provided for each of the other parts of the Financial Section.
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Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
question, "How did we do financially during the 2009-2010 fiscal year?” The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.
This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change
in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial
positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result
of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District's property
tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

¢+ Governmental activities — All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant
facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

¢ Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund
is reported as a business activity.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District's major funds. The School
District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund
financial statements focus on the School District's most significant funds. The School District's major
governmental funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt
Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accotnting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs.
The relationship (or differences) among governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities: therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.

14.
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The School District as a Whole
Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District's net assets for the fiscal year 2010.

Table 1
Net Assets
2010
Assets
Current and other assets $ 3,198,419
Capital assets, net $ 94 467,696
Total assets $ 97,666,115
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities $ 55961,188
Other liabilities $ 9,197,957
Total liabilities $ 65,159 145
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of debt $ 32,641,366
Restricted $ 3,148,242
Unrestricted $ (3,390,373)
Total net assets $ 32,399,235

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for
the School District operations. Property taxes made up 60 percent of revenues for governmentat
activities for the Howell Township Public School District for fiscal year 2010. Federal, state and local
grants accounted for another 39%.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal and state reimbursements.

+ Food service revenues exceeded expenditures by ($54,848).

¢ Charges for services represent $1,479,324 of revenue. This represents amount paid by
patrons for daily food services.

¢+ Federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced
tunches and donated commodities were $478,841.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services.



Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teachers and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration school administration and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development include expenses related to planning, research, development and
evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities include expenses related to student activities provided by the School District
which are designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or
a combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other
related charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.
The School District’s Funds

The School Board uses funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. The Fund's basic
financial statements allow the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and accountability for
resources received from the Township of Howell’s taxpayers and other entities, including the State of
New Jersey and the Federal Government. These statements also allow the reader to obtain more insight
into the financial workings of the School Board, and assess further the School Board'’s overall financial
health.

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, it reported a combined net asset
balance of $32,399,235. The reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities present the reader with a detailed
explanation to the differences between the net change in fund balances and changes in net assets.

The School Board's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take into consideration
unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board's original and final budget compared with actual operating results
is provided in the section of the CAFR entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The Schoo! Board
generally did better than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it practices conservative budgetary
practices in which revenues are forecasted very conservatively and expenditures are budgeted with
worst-case scenarios in mind.

The excesses will be carried forward into the beginning fund balance for the 2010-2011 fiscal year and
will be used to fund the 2010-2011 fiscal budget.

16.



Capital Assets

At the June 30, 2010, the School District had approximately $94,362,999 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, computers, instructional equipment and other
equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date. Table 2 below shows the net book
vaiue of capital assets at the end of the 2010 fiscal year.

Table 2
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30
2010
Land $ 5,348,018
Construction in progress $ 0
Building and improvements $ 85,680,353
Machinery and equipment $ 3334628
Totals $ 94,362,999

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2010, the School district had $64,576,880 as outstanding debt. Of this amount, $2,750,550 is
for compensated absences, $4,186,664 for capital leases, $18,198 of instailment obligations and the
balance $57,621,468 for bonds for school construction.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The Howell Township Public School District is in very good financial condition presently. Future finances
are not without challenges as the community population continues to fluctuate and state funding is
decreased.

The Township of Howell is primarily a residential community, with very few ratables, and is presently
experiencing a slowing of what little ratable growth had been experienced. The majority of revenues
needed to operate the District are derived from homeowners through property tax assessments and
collections, which are voted by the residents annually.

The ($3,390,373) in unrestricted net assets for all governmental activities represents the accumuiated
results of all past years’ operations. This means that if the School Board had to pay off all bills today,
including ail of the School Board's non concurrent liabilities such as compensated absences, the School
Board would have a deficit of $3,390,373. The district also has $1.00 in capital reserve monies as well as
the fair market value of the capital assets.

At this time, the most important factor affecting the budget is the unsettied situation with State Aid and
Tax Levy caps. Since expenses continue to increase due to inflationary and legislative pressures and
revenues are fixed, the district must reduce expenses to compensate.

The School Board cannot accurately forecast future enroliment, but presently is experiencing a continued
reversal of the past growth trend.

In conclusion, the Howell Township Public School District has committed itself to financial excellence for
many years. In addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to
meet the challenge of the future.
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Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the School district’s finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or require additional information contact Ronald
Sanasac, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Howell Township Board of Education, P.O. Box 579,
Howell, New Jersey 07731.
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net

Inventory

Capital Assets, Net (Note 1)
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 3):
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Exhibit A-1
JUNE 30, 2010
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
- 172,468 172,468
2,946,086 42,163 2,988,249
37,787 37,787
94,362,999 104,697 94,467,696
97,309,085 357,115 97,666,200
112,542 161,936 274,478
307.872 307,872
8,615,692 8,615,692
55,961,188 55,961,188
64,997,294 161,936 65,159,230
32,536,669 104,697 32,641,366
53,054 53,054
107,735 107,735
3,095,188 3,095,188
(3,480,855) 90,482 (3.390,373)
32,311,791 195,179 32,506,970

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets

Receivables from Other Governments
Accounts Receivable

Interfund Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Interfund Payable

Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances

Legally Restricted - Unexpended Sale/

Leaseback Reserve

Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures -

Excess Surplus
Capital Reserve Account
Unreserved. Reported In:
General Fund
Capital Projects
Debt Service Fund
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Assets (A-1) are different

because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds. The cost of the
assets 15 $149.141,159 and the accumulated

depreciation is $54.778.160.

Long-term liabilities. including bonds payable. are
not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as labilities in the

funds. (see Note 3)

Net assets of governmental activities

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

22.
Exhibit B-1

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 589839 1.382.548 813.713 2,786,100
159,901 83 159,986
1,756,621 53,054 1,809,675
$ 2,506.361 1,382,633 813,713 53,054 4,735,761
$ 88.424 24,118 112,542
53,054 1.050.643 705.978 1.809.675
307.872 307.872
141,478 1,382,633 705,978 - 2.230,089
1,088.268 65,236 1,153,504
602,117 602.117
1,404,802 1.404.802
305,192 305,192
I 1
(1,035.497) (1.035.497)
42.499 42.499
53.054 53,054
2,364,883 - 107,735 53,054 2,525,672

$ 2.506,361 1,382.633 813.713 53,054

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

94,362,999

(64,576,880)
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25,
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit B-3

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (From B-2) $ 61,649

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities (A-2) are Different Because:
Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the period.
Depreciation Expense (3,611.,275)
Capital Outlays 7,303,220
3,691,945

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 5,829,070

In the statement of activities certain operating expenses, compensated
absences are measured by the amount earned during the year. In the
government funds however, expenditures for these items are reported
in the amount of financial resources paid. 6,850,084

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of
activities is accrued, regardless of when due. In the governmental fund,
interest is reported when due. 163,916

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (A-2) $ 16,596,664

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-4

Enterprise
Fund

$

172,468

2,726
39,437
37,787

252,418

1,171,911
(1,067,214)

104,697

357,115

161,936

104,697
90,482

195,179

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

Operating Revenues:
Daily Sales
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits
Cost of Sales
Supplies and Materials
Audit
Commodities Processing
Depreciation
Uniforms
Office Supplies
Equipment/Repairs
Miscellaneous

Operating Expenses

Operating Gain/(Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program
Special Milk Program
Food Distribution Program
Interest Income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit B-5

Enterprise
Fund

$

1,455,508
23,816

1,479,324

878,434
962,330
29,465
4,000
18,067
21,551
6,300
4,528
56,116
32,676

2,013,467

(534,143)

26,324

376,087
4,021
72,409
454

479,295

(54,848)

250,027

195,179




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees & Benefits
Payments to Supplies

Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance - July 1

Balance - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Depreciation

Federal Commodities

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable

Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit B-6

Enterprise
Fund

$ 1,479,324
(878,434)
(991,152)

(390,262)

26,324
380,108

406,432

454

16,624

155,844

$ 172,468

$ (534,143)
21,551
72,409

(106)
16,094
33,933

$ (390,262)




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Exhibit B-7
JUNE 30,2010
Unemployment
Compensation
Trust
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 320,863
Total Assets $ 320,863
Net Assets:

Reserved - Unemployment Claims $ 320,863
Total Net Assets $ 320,863

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Additions
Contributions:
Plan Member
Interest Earned
Total Contributions

Deductions
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

$ 535,476

146

535,622

264,144

264,144

271,478
49,385

$ 320,863

30.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2010

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Howell Township
School District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entitv:

The Howell Township School District is a Type 1l district located in the County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type Il district, the School District functions
independently through a Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to
three-vear terms. The purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The Howell
Township School District had an approximate enroliment at June 30, 2010 of 6,761 students.

The students Grades 9-12 are educated by the Freehold Regional High School District of
which Howell Township is a member.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Government Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, is whether:

The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

The District holds the corporate powers of the organization

The District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

The District is able to impose its will on the organization

The organization has the potential to impose a financial/benefit/burden on the District
There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the District as a whole
excluding fiduciary activities such as student activities. Individual funds are not displaved but
the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by state and federal aid,
tuition and county tax levies. from business-type activities generally financed in whole or in part
with fees charged to external parties.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program
revenues directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the
expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues
include (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the District’s
services and (2) operating grants and contributions. These revenues are subject to externally
‘imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax levies and other revenue sources not properly
included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary
funds. The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Department™) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option
noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation of all funds
as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial
reporting models.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The District’s reporting entity applies all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in
which case, GASB prevails.

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination
of internal activity (between or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is
not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. County tax
revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when
grantor eligibility requirements are met. The Unemployment Trust Fund recognizes employer
and emplovee contributions in the period in which contributions are due.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to apply current liabilities. The District considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for long-term pension and
compensated absences, which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual includes Intergovernmental revenues, and
the county tax levy. In general. other revenues are recognized when cash is received.
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NOTE 1: Summaryv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues
and expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for food sales and for services provided
to other governmental entities. Principles operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues
and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

D. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The
principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for
the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do
not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into
separate “fund types”.

Governmental Fund Tvypes

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is
used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund: The District accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the special revenue funds.

Capital Projects Fund: the capital projects fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by proprietary funds).

Debt Services Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance
major property acquisition, construction and improvement programs.

Proprietary Fund Tvype

Enterprise Fund: To account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, in which the intent of the District is that the
costs of providing goods or services to the District on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.
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NOTE 1: Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Fund Accounting (Continued):

Fiduciarv Fund Tvpes

Trust and Agency Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets
held by the District on behalf of outside parties. including other governments, or on
behalf of other funds within the District.

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund: The trust fund 1s used to account for assets
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement. The District reimburses the costs of
unemployment benefits paid by the New Jersey Department of Labor.

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activities Fund): Agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general,
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and are
voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting; the legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.2(g)1. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2010 that were insignificant included
amendments for federal ARRA Funding.

The Public School Education Act of 1975, limits the annual increase of any district’s net
current expense budget. The Commissioner of Education certifies the allowable amount for each
district but may grant a higher level of increase if he determines that the sums so provided would
be insufficient to meet the identified goals and needs of the district or that an anticipated
enrollment increase requires additional funds.

The Commissioner must also review every proposed local school district budget for the
next school year. He examines every item of appropriations for current expenses and budgeted
capital outlay to determine their adequacy in relation to the identified needs and goals of the
district. It in his view, they are insufficient, the Commissioner must order remedial action. If
necessary, he is authorized to order changes in the local district budget.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended by transfers or additional appropriation of
fund balances by approval of a majority of the members of the Board. Amendments are
presented to the Board at their regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board approval.
Such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official minutes of the Board, and
are not made after fiscal year-end as dictated by law. Individual transfers were not material in
relation to the original appropriations. All uncommitted budget appropriations lapse at year-end.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued):

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management
control device during the vear. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences
between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The following presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue
fund revenues and expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — General, Special Revenues and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as
presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
— All Governmental Fund Types. Note that the District does not report encumbrances
outstanding at year end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows
modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the last state aid
payment.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues
and Expenditures.

Special
General Fund Revenue Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from the

budgetary comparison schedules $ 105,492,259 3,568,924
Difference — budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from

GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as

expenditures. and the related revenue is recognized. (273,320)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes. 3,361,724

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (3.456.381)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances —
governmental funds.




NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued):

Special
General Fund Revenue Fund

Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflows” from
the budgetary comparison schedule $ 106,300,054 3,568,924
Differences — budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered

but not received are reported in the year the order is

placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the

supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. N/A (273.320)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances —
governmental funds.

F. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.
Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry
will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the

certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Pavables:

Short-Term interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed. other than
charges for good or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due
within one vear.

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, are recorded as an
expenditure during the year of purchase. The value of inventories remaining at the end of the
fiscal year is not included on the balance sheet.
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses (Continued)

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2010.

L Capital Assets and Depreciation

The District’s property, buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles, furniture and
fixtures with useful lives of five years or more are stated at historical or estimated historical cost
and are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary Fund capital assets are
reported in its respective fund.

The District contracted with an outside service company during the 2003 fiscal year to
provide a report with a comprehensive detail of capital assets and depreciation. The report
included capital assets purchased during the 2002-2003 fiscal year and prior with a historical cost
ot $2,000 or more. The records have been updated to June 30, 2010. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend the useful lives
are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital
assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the
respective accounts. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 - 50
Equipment and Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and Fixtures 5-20

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Retirements  June 30,2010
Governmental Activities:
Land $5.348.018 5,348,018
5,348,018 5.348,018

Depreciable Assets:

Site Improvements 9.253.753 4,284 9.258.037
Buildings 120,470,731 1,737,214 122,207,945
Machinery & Equip. 11.822.404 504.755 12.327.159
Total 141,546,888 2,246,253 143,793,141




NOTE 1: Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Retirements  June 30,2010
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation:
Sites (3.471.435) (394,330) (3.865.765)
Buildings (39.,549,644) (2,370,220) {41,919.864)
Machinery& Equip. (8.145.806) (846.725) (8.992.531)
Total Accumulated
Depreciation (51.166.885) (3.611.275) (54.778.160)
Net Depreciable Assets __90.380.003 (1,365.022) 89,014,981

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets (Net)  $95,728,021

Depreciations expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Unallocated $3.611.275
Balance Balance
Julv 1, 2009 Additions Retirements  June 30,2010
Business-Type Activities:
Equipment $1.171.911 1,171,911
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation:
Equipment (1.045.,663) 21,551 (1.067.214)

Business-Type Capital
Assets (Net) $ 126,248 (21,551 o 104,697



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

J. Compensated Absences

District employees are permitted, within certain limitations, to accrue vacation and sick
leave in varying amounts under the Districts personnel policies and may be paid at a later date
according to contractual agreements.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is
recorded in the government-wide financial statements as a non-current liability. Governmental
funds report only matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees and
are included in wages and benefits payable

K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the general and special revenue funds represent cash which has been
received but not yet earned. Deferred revenue in the general fund represents monies received for
fiscal year 2010. See Note I(F) regarding the special revenue fund.

L. Fund Equity

The governmental fund financial statements report reserved fund balance for amounts
not available for appropriation or legally restricted for specified purposes. The general fund
reserve for restricted purposes includes net assets relating to capital reserve (See Note 9).

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The District classifies
certificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than
twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments.

Deposits

New lJersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public
depositories located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. or by any other agency of the
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of
public funds that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average
daily balance of collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75%
of the capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market
value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Deposits

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than
$25.000.000.

Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations
guaranteed by the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Agency or any United
States Bank for cooperatives which have a maturity date not greater
than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

As of June 30, 2010, cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted
of the following:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents
Checking and Money Market Accounts $ 710,745

The carrying amount of the District’s cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010 was
$710,745 and the bank balance was $1,791,791. Of the bank balance, $200,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance and $1,591,791 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the
banks as required by New Jersey statutes.

Credit Risk Categories

All bank deposits and investments as of the balance sheet date are classified as to credit
risk by the following categories described below:

Bank Balance

June 30,2010 June 30, 2009
Depositorv Account
Insured:
FDIC $ 200,000 300,000
GUDPA 1,591,791 5.037.051

As of December 31, 2010 the District did not hold any long-term investments.
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NOTE 3:

General Long-Term Debt

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance  Long-Term 2010-11

June 30,2009  Deletions June 39, 2010 Portion Pavment

Compensated Absences

Payable $ 9,600.634 6,850,084 2,750,550 2,750,550

Capital Leases Payable 7,896,514 3,709,850 4,186,664 821,654  3.365,010
Installment Obligation 37,376 19,178 18,198 12,132 6.066
Bonds Payable 63.431.359  5.809.891 57.621.468 52.376.852 5,244,616
$80.,965.883 16.389,003 64.576.880 35,961,188  8.615.692

A. Bonds Pavable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality
through referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are of general obligation bonds.

School

Small Project

Small Project

Middie School (Refunded)
Construction of 3 Schools
Middie School (Refunded)
ERIP (Refunded)

Pension Series 2005

Maturity Schedule

Year Ending June 30,

Date of Interest

Issue Rate
08-18-93 1.50%
08-18-93 5.29%
01-07-98 3.75% to 4.80%
07-19-02 3.20% t0 5.25%
07-19-02 2.00% to 5.25%
02-19-03 2.00% to 5.875%
03-08-05 3.70% to 5.35%

Balance
June 30,2010
$ 71,841
284,627
4,475,000
24,010,000
10,830,000
2,735,000

15,215,000

Principal Interest Total
$ 5,244,616 2,730,766 7,975,382
5,462,481 2,507,983 7,970,464
5,715,566 2,253,868 7,969,434
4,368,805 2,009,149 6.377,954
4,495,000 1,783,463 6,278,463
22,865,000 5,229,438 28,094,438
9,275,000 673,973 9,948,973
195,000 17,772 212,772

$57.621.468
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NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt (Continued)

B. Capital Leases

2001 lighting renovations @ 5.47% interest for 10 years maturing 7/15/2010 with a
balance of $61,096 at June 30, 2010.

2006 various equipment @ 3.10% interest for 5 years maturing 7/22/10 with a balance of
$2.725,000 at June 30, 2010.

2008 various equipment @ 0% interest for 5 years maturing 8/18/11 with a balance of
$80,981 at June 30. 2010.

2008 equipment lease @ 0% interest for 5 years maturing 7/15/12 with a balance of
$920,612 at June 30, 2010.

2007 equipment lease @ 3.986% interest for 5 years maturing 9/30/12 with a balance of
$398.975 at June 30, 2010.

Future Minimum Lease Pavments

2010-2011 $ 3,365,009
2011-2012 491,093
2012-2013 450.603
4,306,705
Less: Interest (120.041)

Lease Payments

Installment Obligations

Underground storage tank (@ no interest dated 8/15/02 for 10 years maturing 11/1/2012
with a balance of $18,198 at June 30, 2010.

Maturity Schedule

Principal

2010-2011 $ 6,066
2011-2012 6,066
2012-2013 6.066

938
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans

Description of Plans — All required employees of the District are covered by either the
Public Employees” Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have
been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations
of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division
of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — The Teachers™ Pension and Annuity
Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide
retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The
Teachers” Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a
special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing
employers.  Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the
professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of
Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — The Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide retirement. death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The
Public Employees Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions — The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set
by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to
ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement
benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the
final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the
average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three years’
compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to
ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the
member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provide for specified medical
benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service. as defined, or
under the disability provision of the System.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of
service credit. become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contribution. In the case of
death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the
members” accounts.
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation - During the vear ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted
Chapter 114, P.L. 1997) authorizing the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue
bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in part, the State of New
Jersey’s portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement
systems. Additional legislation enacted during the vear ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115, P.L.
1997), changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This
legislation also contains a provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by 2 of 1% to
4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after
calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also
provided that the Districts’ normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the
revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation
method as a result of enactment of Chapters 114 and 115, all unfunded accrued liabilities were
eliminated, except for the unfunded liability for local early retirement incentive benefits,
accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were reduced.

Funding Policy — The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS
provide for employee contributions of 5% of employees” annual compensation, as defined.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS.
The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments,
noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the
District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Legislation enacted during 1993 provides early retirement incentives for certain members
of TPAF and PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement
between certain dates in the 1994 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an
additional five years of service credit for employees at least age 50 with a minimum of 25 years
of service; (b) free health benefits for employees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of
service; and (c) an additional $500 per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10
years but less than 20 years of service. The Board will assume the increased cost for the early
retirement as it affects their districts.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the State of New Jersey contributed $3,137,899 to
the TPAF for post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $3,599,903 during the vear
ended June 30, 2010 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members
as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in the general-purpose
financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and
schedules as revenues and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 $ None 100% $0
6/30/09 None 100% 0

6/30/08 None 100% 0
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid On-Behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 $3.137,899 100% $0
6/30/09 3,031,150 100% 0
6/30/08 5,858,175 100% 0
NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, ¢.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund
(TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢. 103 amended the law to eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate
funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2009,
there were 84,590 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these
benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62.
Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-
go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢. 126, which provides
free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a
board of education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $116.9 million
toward Chapter 126 benefits for 13,320 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2009.

NOTE 6: Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16),
“Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to
services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the right to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance
with the District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.
The District’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the
full amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the
unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee
unions.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are
greater than one year should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year
and the amount due in more than one year.
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NOTE 7: Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Township of Howell Board of
Education by inclusion of $1 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures
in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal
at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to
N.JS.A.19:60-2. Pursuant to NJ A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7. the balance in the account cannot at any
time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2010 fiscal year is as
follows:

Beginning Balance July 1, 2009 $1
Ending Balance June 30, 2010 $1
NOTE 8: Inventory

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Food $ 21,662
Supplies 16.125
$ 37,787

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the
Single Audit Law of 1984) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at
the date of purchase and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial
statements.

NOTE 9: Fund Balance Appropriated

General Fund — Of the $5.821,464 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2010,
$1,088,268 is reserved for encumbrances; $1,404,802 has been appropriated and also included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2010; $602,117 is reserve for sale/leaseback; $1
has been placed in the capital reserve, $305,192 is excess surplus and $2.421,084 is unreserved
and undesignated.



NOTE 10: Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance -
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years” budget. The
excess fund balance at June 30, 2010 was $305,192.

NOTE 11: Contingent Liabilities

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect of the financial position of the District.

NOTE 12: Tuition Adjustments

Regulations specify that tuition adjustments for any given school vear shall be
remitted/received in the two following years after the tuition rate is certified. These adjustments
have not been reflected on the June 30, 2010 financial statements.

NOTE 13: Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state
governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, may have an
effect on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 14: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of
insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District elected to fund
its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method™. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment
Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State.
The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of
District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and
the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Employer Employee
Fiscal Year Contributions  Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2009-2010 $ 146 535,476 264,144 320,863
2008-2009 216 95,365 105,547 49,385

2007-2008 1.974 93,906 36.868 59351



NOTE 15: Refunding Bonds

Refunding bonds were sold on July 19, 2002 for $13,435,000 to refund principal and
interest on the 1997 Middle School bonds leaving an aggregate principal amount of $4,115,000
Series 1997 Bonds which will be fully amortized on July 15, 2007. This issue is fully insured by
AMBAC Guaranty Insurance Company. The issuing funds have been deposited in an escrow
deposit trust fund to defease all the callable bonds on July 15, 2007.

Refunding bonds were sold on March 8, 2005 for $19,080,000. The Boards unfunded
accrued liability in the PERS and TPAF systems under ERI pension fund liabilities.

The bonds maturing prior to July 15, 2016 are not subject to redemption prior to their
stated maturities. The bonds of this issue maturing on or after July 15, 2016 are subject to
redemption prior to their stated maturity at the option of the Board, in whole or in part, on any
date. on or after July 15, 2015 upon notice as required herein at 100% of the principal amount
(the “Redemption Price™), plus in each case accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

Refunding revenue bonds were sold on March 15, 2006 for $5.008,000 for restructuring
purposes.

NOTE 16: Operating Leases

Purchase of textbooks and equipment dated 9/17/09 for five years maturing 9/14/14 with
4.1398% interest with the following repayment schedule:

Date Principal Interest Total
9/17/10 $ 292,505 45,028 337,533
9/17/11 301,002 36,530 337,532
9/17/12 309,746 27,786 337,532
9/17/13 318,744 18,788 337,532
9/16/14 328.003 9.529 337.532

$ 1,550,000 137,661 1,687,661

NOTE 17: Contingent Liabilities

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the
opinion of the administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect of the financial position of the District.

NOTE 18: Equity Balance

At June 30, 2010 the General Fund equity balance was as follows:

Sale/Leaseback Reserve $ 602,117
Capital Reserve 1
Reserve for Encumbrances 1.088,268
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures 1,404,802
Excess Surplus 305,192
Unrestricted 2,421,084

$ 5.821.464

48.



NOTE 18: Equity Balance (Continued)

2% Calculation of Excess Surplus

2009-10 Total General Fund Expenditures Per the CAFR

Decreased by:
On-Behalf TPAF Pension & Social Security

Adjusted 2009-10 General Fund Expenditures
2% of Adjusted 2009-10 General Fund Expenditures
Increased by Allowable Adjustment
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance
Section 2
Total General Fund — Fund Balance @ 6-30-10
Decreased by:

Reserved by Encumbrances

Other Reserved Fund Balances
Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures

Excess Surplus

Detail of Allowable Adjustments

Extraordinary Aid
Additional Nonpublic School Transportation Aid

Total Adjustments
Detail of Other Reserved Fund Balances

Sale/Leaseback Reserve
Capital Reserve

Total Other Reserved Fund Balance

NOTE 19: Recent Account Pronouncements

$ 106,300,054

(6.737.802)

$.99.562.252
$ 1,991,245
429.839

$2.421.084

$5.821.,464

(1,088,268)
(602.118)
(1.404.802)

$2.726,276

$404,802

25.037

$429.839

$602.117
1

$602.118

49.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sole source of
authoritative generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC
103, the District has updated references to GAAP in its financial statements issued for the period
ended June 30, 2010. The adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not impact the District’s financial
position or results of operations.



NOTE 19: Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In May 2009, the FASB updated ASC 835, Subsequent Events, which is effective for
reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. ASC 855 establishes general standards of
accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date. but before the
financial statements are issued, or are available to be issued. The District adopted the amended
sections of ASC 855 and it did not have an impact on the District’s financial statements. The
District evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 2010 through October 18,
2010.
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64.
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

Exhibit C-1a
STATE FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND

ARRA-ESF
Adjusted Funds
Budget Expended Available

Salaries of Teachers

100-100-101 $ 2,245,812 2,245.812

2XX-100-10X 1,045,174 1,045,174

000-2XX-10X 1,522,908 1,522,908
Total ARRA-ESF $ 4,813,894 4,813,894 -



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 6.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

Exhibit C-1b
STATE FISCAL STABILIZATION FUND

ARRA-GSF
Adjusted Funds
Budget Expended Available
Salaries of Teachers
100-100-101 $ 186,353 186,353

Total ARRA-GSF $ 186,353 186,353 -
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 67.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Exhibit C-3
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules $ 105,492,259 3.568.924

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized. (273,320)

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes. 3.361,724

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year. (3,456,581)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. $ 105,397,402 3,295,604

Uses/OQutflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from
the budgetary comparison schedule $ 106,300,054 3,568,924

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes. (273.320)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. $ 106,300,054 3,295,604




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES - D

N/A



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - E
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND —F



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues:
Local Budget
State Grants

70.

Exhibit F-1

1,093,717
813,713

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Construction Services

1,967,430

1,864,931

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning

42,499

Fund Balance - Ending

42,499




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADDITION TO ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

FROM INCEPTION AND FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant

Local Share-Budget

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

71.

Exhibit F-1a
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Revised

Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost

- 119.419 119,419 119,419
160,511 160,511 160,511
- 279,930 279,930 279,930
250,883 250,883 279,930
- 250,883 250,883 279,930

- 29,047 29,047 -

Expenditures

Additional Project Information
Project Number's

Grant Date
Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

2290-020-09-0SA0O
2290-030-09-0SAQ
2290-060-09-0SAW
2009-2010

$ 279,930

0

89%
9/1/2010
9/1/2010



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE,

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADDITION TO ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant

Local Budget

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Exhibit F-1b
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Revised

Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Cost

- 694,294 694,294 694,294
933,206 933,206 933,206
- 1,627,500 1,627,500 1,627,500
1,614,048 1,614,048 1,627,500
- 1,614,048 1,614,048 1,627,500

- 13,452 13,452 -

Expenditures

Additional Project Information
Project Number's

Grant Date
Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

2290-020-09-OSAP
2290-032-09-0SAS
2290-040-09-0SAU
2009-2010
$1,627,500

0

99%
9/1/2010
9/1/2010
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Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ENTERPRISE FUND

JUNE 30,2010

Exhibit G-1

Food
Services

$ 172,468

2,726
39,437
37,787

252,418

1,171,911
(1,067,214)

104,697

$ 357,115

$ 161,936

$ 104,697
90,482

$ 195,179

73.



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues:
Daily Sales
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits
Cost of Sales
Supplies and Materials
Audit
Commodities Processing
Depreciation
Uniforms
Office Supplies
Equipment/Repairs
Miscellaneous

Operating Expenses

Operating Gain/(Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program
Special Milk Program
Food Distribution Program
Interest Income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

Exhibit G-2

Food
Services

1,455,508
23,816

1,479,324

878,434
962,330
29,465
4,000
18,067
21,551
6,300
4,528
56,116
32,676

2,013,467

(534,143)

26,324

376,087
4,021
72,409
454

479,295

(54,848)

250,027

195,179
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUND

JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees & Benefits
Payments to Supplies

Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State Sources
Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance - July 1

Balance - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Depreciation

Federal Commodities

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable

Net Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

75.

Exhibit G-3

Food
Services

$ 1,479,324
(878,434)
(991,152)

(390,262)

26,324
380,108

406,432

454

16,624

155,844

$ 172,468

$ (534,143)
21,551
72,409

(106)
16,094
33,933

$ (390,262)
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Additions:

Interest

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Total Additions

Deductions:
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, June 30, 2009

Net Assets, June 30, 2010

JUNE 30,2010

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust

Exhibit H-2

Total

146
535,476

535,622

264,144

264,144

264,144

264,144

271,478
49,385

271,478
49,385

$ 320,863

320,863

77.



Total Schools

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit H-3
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010
Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2009 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2010
$ 165,260 337,957 326,947 176,270
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Exhibit H-4
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
UNE 30, 2010
Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Deletions June 30, 2010
$ 426,596 29,698,151 29,676,563 448,184
$ 426,596 29,698,151 29,676,563 448,184
$ 426,596 29,698,151 29,676,563 448,184
$ 426,596 29,698,151 29,676,563 448,184

Total Liabilities

79.



LONG-TERM DEBT -1



80.

000°509°1 LI/SY/L
000°6TS1 9l/SI/L
000°SPH'1 SI/S/L
%STS 000°SLE" vLSE/L
000°50€°1 el/st/L
%00°S 000°SPT'I Cl/SiiL
%0L°€ 000°681°1 T/S/L
000°0€8°01 000°501°1 000°S€6°11 %09°¢ 000°SP1°1 01/S1/L 000°SEr'El co/61/L
%08y 0000951 Cl/SI/L
%SLY 000°06%"1 H/SHL
000°SLY' Y 000°09€°1 000°6£8°S 0Ly 000°STH'I OL/S1/L 000°06S°¢1 86/L/1
SY8'SL CL/St/L
909°CL cl/St/L
125°69 L/st/L
LT9'¥8C 0£6°€9 LSS'8YE %6C°S $59°99 01/S1/L 0SL€TO' £6/81/8
178°1L 196°L1 708°68 $ %0571 196°L1 $ €10c-01/81/L 0ST'I¥E  § £6/81/8
0102 ‘0g dungp PadYy 6007 ‘0€ dunp Ay junowy e Jnssy jo anssy
uejey Juvieyg 1s0.193u] Ajumey jenuuy junowy joaeq

€10 1319948
I-F Hqugxy

0107 "0t ANOT

SANO4 "TVRIAS 40 'TNAAHOS

L93d WHAL-ONO'1

LOTILSIA TOOHOS dTHSNAMO.L TTAMOH

(urpunyay) [00YdS A[PPIA

(utpunjay) [00U2S S[PPIA

afody [

ofoad [jpuwIg
HSITGIN



81.

%005°¢ 000°0S2 81/1/01
%00¢°¢ 000°6£7 L1/1/01
%%SLES 000°02Z 91/1/01
%00T°S 000°50T S1/1/01
%001°S 000°S61 P1/1/01
%000°S 000°581 €1/1/01
%SLE Y 000°0L1 /101
%0SL Y 0007691 /1701
000°5€LT 000°S¥1 000'088°C %00S v 000751 01/1/01 000°0€9°¢ £0/61/C
%SLY 000°¢st°T TUST/L
000°0¥¢°C 1Z/S1/L
000°57T°C 0T/ST/L
%00°S 000°611°C 61/S1/L
000°010°C 81/SH/L
000°016°1 L/ST/L
000°018°1 91/S1/L
000°0ZL"1 SH/SI/L
%ST S 000°0£9°1 P/SE/L
000°0SS°1 el/st/L
%00°¢ 000°SLY 1 CTI/ST/L
%0L'¢ 000°01t°1 T/SH/L
000°010T 000°01¢° 1 000°0TE°ST %09t 000°09€°T  $ 01/S1/L 000°0€5°1¢€$ 20/61/L
0102 ‘0¢ dung paanay 600T “0¢ dungp vy junowry e anssy jo anssj
sduejey Juejeyg 1524914 Ajranye jenuuy junoury 190 a3e(q
0107 "0€ ANNT
€30 T193YS
1-1 HQIYXT SANOI "TVIIAS 40 TTNAAHDS

L4394 WHAL-DNOT

LOTILS1IA TOOHIS dTHSNAMOL TTIMOH

Burpunyay dryd

SJOOUDS § JO UOLIINISUO)



82.

891" 1T9°LS 168°608'S 6SCIEVE9  $
- 000°€8L 000°€8L %005°¢ 000°¢8L 60/1/8 000°800°S 90/51/¢ Spuog anuaAdy Sulpunjay
%05¢°¢ 000°09L1 0T/S1/L
%00€°S 000°0L9°1 61/S1/L
%00T'S 000°685°1 SI//L
%001°¢ 000°605°1 LI/ST/L
%050°¢ 000°0€+1 91/s1/L
%056t 000°09¢"1 SU/SI/L
%056'Y 000°56T°1 PI/Cl/L
%008 000°6€T°1 el/el/L
%059t 000°6L1° CL/el/L
%009t 000°ST1°I L/st/L
000°S1ZS1 000°$20°1 000°0vZ'91 %05t 000°SL0 Ol/SI/L 000°080°61 S0/8/¢ £007 saLleg uosuag
000°0L LT/1/01
000°59 9¢/1/01
00009 €T/1/01
000°09 PT/1/01
%SL8'S 000°5¢ £¢/1/01
000°0S /1ol
%SLY'S 000°0¢ 1Z/1/01
%05L°S 000°08C 0T/1/01 {(panunuo))
%579'¢ 000°69T  § 61/1/01 000°0€9°¢ $ £0/61/T Suipunyoy dyd
0107 ‘o€ sungp paaay 6002 ‘0¢ dunp ey junowy Aeq anssy Jo anssy
uejey Jaurjeyg 15340} AN jenuuy junowy Joaeq
€30 € 19948 0102 "0¢ ANOT
-1 gy

SANOY TVRIAS 40 4TNAAHDS

L4994 WHAL-DNO'T

LOTILSIA TOOHDS dIHSNMOL TTAIMOH



83.

861°81 8L1°61 9LE"LE $
861°81 9909 y9TvT 990°9%
DTY/IT-01/1/11 09909 T0/51/8
- AR r48K3! $ TITETS
®600T/1/8 CTIIETS 66/01/8
0107 ‘o€ dunp pred 6007 ‘0€ dunp sjuswfjeIsu] junowy JIWIRITY
ueey Rueiey Joae(q Jo aye(q

-1 nqrgxy

SNOLLVOI'TdO INFIWTIV.LSNI 40 ' INAAHOS

LHd WHAL-ONO'T

LORILLSIA "TOOHDS dIHSNAMOL TTIMOH

yue], o8e101g punocisiopury

yue] o8e10)g punosSiopun



84.

£99°981°f 0S8°60L°¢ 715°968°L $
186708 0610 1Ly1zl 196191 %000
T19°026 1.8°90€ €8V LTT L VLT %000
vL6°86€ 626'TT1 €06°1CS 0T1°0%9 %01°¢
000°STL'T 000°STL'T 000°0St°S 000°00T°9 %01°¢
- 9€9°9GH 9€9°9SH 000°0L1°T %¥8'CT
L6019 YT6°LS 120611 $ 000005  $ %LY'S
0107 ‘0¢ dunp paanay 6007 ‘0€ dunp anss| ey
w.,:_u:ﬁ«mwzo w:::—wumu-_o E:_wm.-c }saaRjuj
junoury junoury Jojunowmy

TNy

0107 "0 ANNT

SASVATIVLIAVD YAANA SNOLLVOITIO 40 X' 1NAAHDS

L43d WHAL-ONO'T

LOTALSIA TOOHDS dIHSNMOL TTAIMOH

asea] wwdwdinbyg jjo(
asea wawdinby opddy
ased] uawdinbg /007
asear] wawdinbg 9907
aseat juawdinby coog
yoswalny - ustudinbg 190z



PSO'eS ¥S0°€S - - - $
06€'19 06€'19 06€'19
rS0'€s (9€€'8) (06€°19) - (06£°19)
#S0°€S SPLI'8TL'S 661°18L°8 - 661°18L'8
vS0°CS SYI'8TL'S 661°18L°S - 661°18L°8
- 0L0°6T8°S 0L0°6T8°S 0L0°6T8°S
$S0°¢S SLO'668C 6T1°TS6°C 6C1°TS6'T
- 608°61L°8 608°61L'8 - 608'61L°8
0T6'109°1 0T6'109°1 0T6'109°1
688 L11°L 688°L11°L 688°LIT°L $
[en1dy o3 [eul; [enjoy 193png SI3JsuBL] 18png
(0AnESBIN)/PADISOJ feury 198png [euIdiQ
IDUBLIBA

€1 HQXy

0107 "0€ ANNL AHANT dVIA 'TVOSIH dHL 04

ANDA HOIAYAS 19494

ATNATHOS NOSRHIVAINOD AdVLADdANY

LI WHAL-ONO1

LIOTILSIA "TOOHDS dIHSNAOL TTHMOH

(¢ sung sour[Rg pun
[ A[nf aoueeg pung

sarmypuadxy
(I9pU[) I9AQ) SANUIADY JO (K2UIDA(]) $820X5]

sammypuadx fpio]

ADIAIGG 1G(T TepnEoy [BI0 L
rediouts jo uondwopay
1saI03U]
1ODIALDE 1GD(] Ie[nSoy
ssamyipuadxy

SPNUAIY [BIO]
[12dAL pry 201a108 1921
ISI0UNOT NG
AAD] XB] [BOOT]
1$90IN0OG [8D07]
SANUIADY



STATISTICAL SECTION

(Unaudited)



86.

0/6'9052¢ $ 2G60LYLLS AZAZ TS YOl //8'EL
(£2£°06£'C) (zv6'9.€£'0L) (166°212'L) (500°196°2)
116'G52'E vv8'867'c PP TLYL 908'29t'S
99¢'L¥9'2e $ 020'687'vZ $ 061'68,'0C $ €0€'6/€'0L
6/1G66L % /20062 $ G81'66Z $ v22'G8Y
Z8y'06 BLL€TL 8/¥'6EL 920'G6¢
/69'v0L 3 LA TAT > 101'GSL $ 861061
LBLLLEZE $ G26'09L°/1$ 1G0'SYL YL $ 088'L6€'¢)
(GG8'08¥'¢) (169'00501L) (69¥'25€°L) (Leo'9sZ'8)
116'66Z'E vy8'862'¢C Sy TIYL 908'29%'S
699'9€6'2¢ $ 2LL'TOE YT S £80'0£9'02 $ 50168191

0102 6002 8002 1002

‘0¢ sunp Buipug JEaA |BOSIH
MBN
-8 dSVO

- Naiyx3g

L-Y BINPUBOS W4YD 82108

SISSSE 18U 10ISIP (810 |
paoLISIUN
DOUISEY
199p paiejal 10 18U ‘s1asse jeydes Ul PaISaALl
apim-ouIsiQ

S]9SSE 18U sBIlAOR adAl-sSauUIsny B0 ).
peIoINSaILN
DBIDIISOY
108D paiejal Jo 1au ‘siasse [euden Ul palsenu|
saiyAoe adA-ssaulsng

S18SSE 18U SIIAIDE [BIUBLLILIBACE 810 |
pBIUISBIUN
PaILISE N
199p paje|al Jo 18U ‘sjasse |eyided Ul PaIsaau|
SBIIANDE |BIUSLULIBADL)

{(Bununoooe jo siseq 1BNIDOER)
{poupneun) sieax |EDSI4 N0 JSET]
quauodwion Aq sjossy 19N
uoneonpy jo pieog diysumo] [JomoH



87.

689'G6Z'C

Zit

15€'6/8°L 186'919'Z

219'66%'2

286'1/E€20L §

0y phy Lil  $ 806°1¥SCLL §

/89°6EL'L1IL S

L9v'EL0e ¥0G'€80'C LESESLT LIZ0I0E
L9¥E€1L0T P0S'€€0'C 1€6'2S1'C L12'0.0T
SlL1'85€°001 9416017 604 12£'69E°01 1 0l¥'690'601
$/ZL19'e 689'029'c 8/9'8C.'¢ 8G0'C68'S
£6e'o81
¥B88'CL8'Y
B8G1'GELT Sro'valL'e ZIE've8'e L60'EGS'E
Z00'evi've 86°LLL'82 SoY'ZLG6T PBR'CTO'ET
6566121
€LE'6TLL G8E'E8G'8 96.°005'6 £O98'CET 6
6.9'600'6 0£6'/59'8 596'G98'8 18.¥99'8
18/°200'G [42 A TASY B8ZT'8E8'9 Y2 L850
15029171 SYG1LG6'T G68'9Z1'1L PEGGOL L
9LE'vZB'6 8Lv'0£L'0) 898°/5. 0L B/1'296'6
ZyLoLs 119616 8y.'g6Y' L Z8€'061
£E6'562 yeR06e 90%'982 [4:TA 44
Z09'€Ls'e B6OY'66£2 L/£'918'2 Z01'6.0°2
00e'/£6'6 PO LYL Y LET8ELLL ¥85'GG1LZ1
96Z'196'LL $ $20'9€6'LZ $ coy'pze'se  $ S AFNA S TN

0102 8002 8002 2002

‘0 aune BuipuT BB A |BOSIH
MaN
¢-9 g4Svo
- nawyx3

suogngues pus siuesd Bunsisdo
s801AJe$ Hoddns iewo pue ssauisng
yoneodsuey pdng
(LRI} BoRDNISLY
saomses 10 sellisyn
SSHALOE JEIUBLLLBAGE)
sanuasoy wesboiy

sasUHAXD DUISID (B0 )

Bsusdxs sanMoe adASsBuUIsnyg (B0 L
BT PIUD
FOIAIBE [O0

sanARoe adA-ssausng

SEBUBAXD SBIANCE [BIUBLLUBADE 18I0 |

LONBIDBISD pRIBNORBUN

A5 - vy

483 - vHuy

Wep Wael-BUop un 1ssmI

SBUBY PBYEOD|BUN

SIO0UOS JBUEYD

BIOOYDS BIoeds
SOOIMBES Moddng Jsui0) pue ssawsng
vonsuodsuen pdng
SouRUSILIBW pUB SUDRRISCO WBld
SOOIIBE BATBNSIUIUIDY I8
SENAIBS BAJBASLIUDE (00UDS
BOOIABS BAJBASILIUDY SSHUISIE DU [RIBUBT
SHOIAIDS DOIBIES UOHONASUL % JUBDME
uoning

saoines Poddng

swieaBosd uoeonps Bumuuoopnpy
swelBosd 1ooyos ngnduon
LORONASU IS0
JEUOIBOO A
Loesnpa [ploeds IBuiD
uongONPs jemadsy
semnbey
UORONSY]
SHAIAIDR [BIUSUIBADS)
sasusdxgy

{paypneun)

(Bununonoe jo $ISeq jeriaoe)

SIS A 1BOSI4 N0 JSET ‘S}8SY JoN ui sabueysn
UOREONPT JO preog dIYUSMO L (18MOH



88.

14

918'1vS'9L  $ G2/ SBB ¥ $ /60BEVE  § 90V /SG9 B
(8v8'v5) (851'6v) (BE0'061) [CLERA)
$99'065'9L $  £88'0¥0'G § 9EL6TOE  $ 5166999 $

189°666'9LL ¢

Lesgell s

LIG90VLLL §

Ziezezell $

[ 4514

599

£90°G

609'C1

[4°14 599 190'G 609°C1

£€2 656 911 yy'Ti8CLL 0lGLovLLL 80/'642°¢L)
§568'¢20'Z PPY'6EC L 5¥5'12S SOL'oby'y
ovG' 461 z29'19¢ ¥66'89 82¢'98
ze8’eT 81209 /8181 960'6€€
Z92'9¢€S 2.8'48¢ 9Lyl 9£2'66¢
$55'8.2'ey Z9E'69C Ly £€9.'208'Cy 600'€T8' LY
688°LLLL $ 09G'6¥¥'L $ 860'92L'L $ 96e' 9L’ L 8
Log'L22'e9 $ $99'801°29 ¢ 1v8'226'65 $ 819'826'85 $

(ZIv'eiyool) $

(9g£'//8°/01) §

(08y'2067201) §

(116'v£2'901)8

(zoe's5)
(G11'85¢°00L) ¢

(128sy)
(655'188°201) ¢

(901661}
(vi8'220°200) %

8L1sz1)
(£62'609'901)%

YG8'EST'S $ YE0L9G'E $ 8CY ¥IG v $ 60v'6Z8T  $
S91'8S8°} L19°/881 LV /66 26.'€.8
Ly8'aly yeE0LY 828 L0y -
P8yl 2L LIS FACIRR: o iel Z26L'€LE
689'G6Z '€ 16E'6/5°1 /66'919¢C £19'65%'2
0102 6002 8002 1002
“0¢ eunT buipug Jeal [eosid
MEN
29 95v9D
- Haxg

Y BNDSULE MY SINGS

Jouisip Bio |
saIAoR BdA)-ss8UISnY
SBUIAIOE [BILSLILIBACS
81H88Y JaN u abueyn

SRIM-JOLISID 18I0 ]

Agoe dh-8SRUISTY BI0 L
BUIDDU] BROBURRISIY
SHULBS TUBLABBALY

sHilAoE sdh-sesisng

SBUAOR [BIUBWILIBA0E B0 |
SI9)SUBL |
BYO
BUIOOU SNOBUEJIBOSIA
sBuues WslLIessL)
uopn
SUORNAUILCD pur siueld payossiun
BOINIGS WD 10} PBIAG]| $8XE

jau ‘sesodind jeiaush Joj peina) sexe) Auedold

SBBIHALCE IBIUSLILLISADD)

$1988Y 19N Ul saBueyS 18YI0 PUR S8NUBADY |RISUDT)

BEUBUNS 1BU BRINCIDINSID BI0 L
sefanor sdi-sssuisng
SERANDE [BIUSLILLIBADD

anudasy{asuadxy) 16N

senusas) wrlBoid s B0
sanusnat weiboid seyanoe sdll sssuisng @0
suoinginuos pue siueld jenden
sUCHNgLUOD pue siuesd Bupeiedn
BIRD DIYD
BOIISE DOO
sanines o) sebieun
SHNALDE BUARSSBLENY

sanuarss weiboid sayanoe [BlUswWBA0E 1810 |
suONQUILIDD pue spuest jeiden

{paupneun)

(BununNonoe o SIseq jeniose)

s129 ) [BOSI4 N0 1887 '81988Y JoN Ul sebueyn
UOREONPT 40 pieog GIYUSMO] [IBMOH



89.

£65'G6 $ 06£'19 $ Z16'85¢ $ 05 965
vG0'€S 06£'L9 06€'19 655,
6672y - - -
(0/8'L) (629'2)
Z6£'60¢ $ 0.5'965
6LLOEY C $ /BE'/EE'T $ \Ww8'202'L % 809'069'S
(gog'0€2) (£60'006) Z5¥'Lov'e L0€'v28
yZy'09L'e $ T ANAS $ egc'ovL'y ¢ L0£'998'y
0102 6002 8002 1002
MBN
£-g9 4SVO
¢-r Hqyx3g

-8 BINPBYSS HAYD 80In0g

Spuny [BuswWUIBACDL J8UI0 e 810 |
puny JUBLEULISY
puny 821AI8s 14907
puny s1oafoid jeuden
punj anuaaal |eloadg
Ul psuodal ‘pastesaiun
PBaAIBSSY
SPUN - |EJUBWILIBADD) JBUIO IV

punj [elausb jgjo |
paasesaiun
DOAIDSSY

pun- |2isuso)

(BuUN0ooE JO SISBQ [BIDJE PBYIPOW)
{(poypneuUn) Sles A |€0SI4 1IN0 jse]
‘Spun4 [elUaWILIBAOLD) ‘saduejeg pung
uonesnp3 jo pieog diysumo] |jomoH



90.

(/W) 0P'0Z'Z1 14 spUny p pchy sebpng aimupuadxd a4 jo pug

(e} OF'0Z'01 SPU "ASY 34 JO pU3

20 BNPEYDS YAy [B0IN0S

saunppusdxs eudecsuou
10 sfimusaied B $8 80IAI9S 1080

sanueied pung v sBueys JeN

{swsr) saounos BuouBLY IR0 810 |
N0 BIRJSURI Y
Ut BIBiSURIL
S}988Y ) 1enipy
HBIBY PRIUSOY
N0y HoAR Y
JSOIBNI DATIDOY
PESIURT BIBAMGOY SIINOI0Y
SPUOK JO TUNOWE J8d
SYLNG {eUOIDRY paRdIoIIYAUSLING
aep Bupunies jo spass0id
SBINUPUSEXT FHBOESEE
SPREN0IY HOBSSED RS
saloig waden
{payebpng-uou) seses) puden
{susn) saounos Buoueuld I8RO

saaypuedxs 1spun) oa0

senusAal o {ADUSIDYST]) S500X3

SEIBIPUBUXS B0 ]
safiieys JaUo pue jseiauy
pdinulg

BUAISS 308

snuassy RIOsde

SIOOURE FBLBYD

Aepno jepden
ASO WY
253 VHYY
syyeueg asdodule payEIOIRUN
samAIBe Bordng JBUI0) PUB SEBLISHY
uogELodEUR gdng
aouBuLIBLY pUB SUoRBedo JuBlY
SEHAISS SARRASIIUDY JORD
SEUAIDS SARBASIILPY DOUDE
SEOAISS SAREISRILIDE BIGUSE)
SAOIIBS PHYEIEI UOHONISU B UBPMS
uony

saomieg poddng
swiesfiound uoneonps Hunuguodmnpy
stunBond poyss ognduoN
LOROTLASUL IBUI0
UORBINPS {BUBHBOOA
vogsnasu Eosds a0
UDRONASH UOREDTIDS [Boads
wonorsuy seniiay

UORONASUL

samypusdxgy

SOUBAR] JRIO L
SHEOIN0S LIPS 4
SBOIOY BRI
SNOBUBHBOSIN
sBunses woieny
sebieyd uoning
Anay xg |

SBNUDADY

{paupnuun) $480A [BOSH] UB] 188

‘SPUN [BIUBIULLIBAOE) *SBoUR|RE Puny Uy sabueyn

Yl %E'8 %8 %06 %88 %E'Q %58 %b'Q W0'L WL
6Y9'19 $ (oB9'86L) § wpeelo) $ (LIG/9%L) $ £6680% $ 9.076l $ (€12ec9'1) § (GpGELOVEIS 26BGBEL §  pEYSZZOP §
GGREZ0T PRy ez | S¥5 128 0/6/12¥ (£8EZ91 1) 068'886'S 656 952'S (/$9'8) 68189 1 POLD6E 2F
- [ $ - $ - 3§ - [ § - - - -
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - -
G11'68 3 (£60'L¥8'GL) §
- g - $ - $ - - - -
- $ - $ $ - - ovr'ez
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - - -
{yee)
(boo'ost)  § - $ - $ - $ - $ - - B -
89828y g - $ - $ - - - (981889'11)
- $ - $ - $ - - 98168911
GoL'zyl'y) ¢ - § - $ 00008061 § - - - 000'006' 1Y
192'065'L $ (G/g'8L) ¢ (0£0'Z86't)  § (€88Z9L’L) § £v6'G8e $ 601’98
18L€60°0 § 0%0'cl
pry'E8e’L  $ 0ZL0VS  $ 0000029 S 0000412 $  008'L51°G - 6Y0'C58'L $OL'0Ep
(o07'296's)  $ (BZL'86E'L)  § (986°062'%) $  (8Y68O°G)  §  WELIZL § (AL'968'6) §  (219'088'9) (968'PO9'VE)  {26G'56Y) (019%91°2)
618581021 § vBPOLOVLL § SVB/PIZLL S 90GPI69LL § SOPZ9Li0l$  869E22¢0l$ 620 9.500L  O0BF LLL8LL  8E68208L ZZBEBB6 £L
GL06687 2§ 62808LF $§ OWYZeLE §  IPOELLE  § 1199l8t §  GESebIT §  60L9S0Y 9EL'626 | 995'620'¢ 250 9¥EC
020'629'S  § OPSOPO'9  $ LPO'EBL'G  $ GROVEQ'D  §  0G9'0L6'Y $  IvLIBLY $  Lbe'eos't 9G2'068'E 9yLL0TE LIELLLE
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - - -
. " . .
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - -
0ZZ'EOC'L  $ 699Z6'C  $ OVZRSLE  $ 108188 § ZIOUEB §  086'G88'¢ $§  1£222L9 Lp5'892°6E Y Lo0's 112'880's
£48'981 $
vee'El8Y 8
Z00EYL'YZ $ PBRULIEZ $§ GOYTICGT § YAS'CZ0CZ  §  8SGTLSL8L §  BLTEGLLL $ L/8'0SE9L 26E'158 7L 0Z6'00L'Z GL9'1B6'T
BG6'6L2L  $ OIY'B8E’L  § BSLVESE 8 625'68 9ez'Zy 716'8.8'6 LPB'8YG'8
CLE'BZLL  § GSEE8G'E  § 96L0066  § £O9EEZ6  § 109198 §  G/E'858'8 §  ZERGYE'S 628'106'9 zZol'e8L'y TLE PR
6L°000'6  $ 0L6L6B'8  § S96'G98'8  $ IBL¥P99'8  $ LOLGEL8 § OvEL08L $ BLZUPYL 9vL'vor'y 260°'968'G LBYPES'S
194006 § SEL'ER0’L B BOYEOEY  $ VES'SOLL  $ OPG'8BLL  § Z9B'E29C 5869507 6v5'95Y'e - -
LGOZ9L'L $ TypeIby  § 6689241 §  APZIBL'S  § £OL'BEG'S $ LBL0SYG § LZ0'GSE'E L0v'Ze0'Z 511688 19¥°181°8
- $ - $ - $ - $ - - 8569012 26604
GLGESE' Ll $ BLYOSL0L § SUBZGLOL $  BLLZOEE  $ OBLUEE'B § LISVEYS §  6BBLI86L $ZE'€8G'L $EE'19Z'D GTTEVE'S
ZrL'oLs $ 149616 ¢ epi'sey't ¢ Z8CUsl $ oze'sYE'L $ PKEL9E'L $ B06'900'C BYZ PPl Z85'¢99°L PEGRLY'L
$ - $ - $ - $ - - - -
- $ - $ - $ - $ - - . .
££6'667 $ YEO'06Z $ 9op9Ez $  ZBTGYY § 080VIE §  £¥E6LY  §  SEPIGE 269'99% LBO'9SE
- $ - $ - $ . $ - - - -
09€157  $ 69Y6RLZ  $ L/£9IE7  § ZOVBL0Z 0§ 0GEOMSL § BBSWES'L § 829'%SEL LigLe9't 6EV'8LE Y6168}
OSLVLLLL S pEOLYLLL $ METRELLL § 0 P8ESGLZL $ ICOE0LL $ vOB'BE0'S § BBL'BIYL 0LE'001'L 00F'865'9 LIS LG8'S
0BCLIVEPZ § BEGLLLOT $ IVTTOB'ST $  CET'OL6YE  §  6ZLGILVE $ 9LI'LSEIGT $ 199'258'9¢ 0826162 LBO'ZEY' T 61£'666'27
Clu0z2B8l) § GGnzlecll § ZO696rCLl §  6L0BSC LLL §  LBIEEVZ0L S  ¥2BOL896 $ /GG GBOE6 286 9pr €8 LpeeEs i ZIEPEB 1L
0B0'OVLB  § COCO0E L  $ 2eL89LC $  GeceE6 L §  vEGWlZe §  9pvBlel  §  Liltloe 1186011 - -
OZ'9ZFEE $ LIBOES'IP $ B00'SKZEr $ BLL'OZETY  § 9LLGIE8E $ L6'7L08E § OpLLIQ9E 8GLLLY'YE 1€1'660'VE G97'087'28
G86'861 $  8zZ'eoe $ £102 $ 06266 $ 029162'7 $ OO¥BEL 862085 2i6'28 112'6% 19566
Ze8'e2 $ 8109 $ /80781 $  950'6eE $ gei'esz  $ 602022 § €546 9L6'29Y 8L0'LOL SBO'Z0E
792956 $ TL448E $ oL $  GET'E62 $ 0B¥IPL  $  BEGSE $ L0616 250'06 0L1'86 oy 1oL
OBL'GBE0L $ PITBGEEY $ GEEBYOLO §  VI6E'B8Z'99 §  9E0'/B9'8S $  [STIPLOS §  ZPBOETES $  CZO'00LOV §  GLOGLVEY $ 0L8'8B0'GE
0102 6002 8007 1007 9002 5002 ¥00Z £002 Z007 100z
- AN
8 g8V
y-F naiixa

uoiRINDH §0 piEoh dIUSUMO L [JOMOH



91.

29 upny - SpJ02ay 1ouisi(] :80IN0g

081 LG, 980°/61 292'9¢G ze8'€ee 0L0¢
8L0'LL8 8CC'€9¢e 2LG'18¢ 812’09 600C
g8y’ LEY v6¥'89 606°¢81 980'6.1 800C
8Ly 0L 12198 GeeT's6e 950'6¢€¢ 1002
GeEY'9LLC 0z8'L6T'e o6¥'LYL GzL'e8e 9002
i1 '88¢ 0ov'6EL 6€G'8C 502’022 G002
86/'628'C 862085'C L06°L6 €65°1G1L Y002
0€6'919 2/6'25 Zv0'96 916'L9Y €002
GZS'¥SeC LIT6Y 0.1'86 8.0°201 002
GGS'09Y 020°LG Ovy'L0L G60'20¢ L00C
|eo] OSIN sjejuay anuUaASY  SIUBWISBAU| (Og aunf papul
uomny uo JsasaU| 1eaA [eosi
a3aLidnvNn

g-r

SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV

A24N0S AG INNIATY TvOOT H3HLO ONNH TVEINIO
10141SI13 TOOHOS dIHSNMOL TTAMOH



92.

0oL S sed s @Bl X8| g
ssurdiio?) WaIsAs sbusssepy pue ydesbsig ] sutytiss | 1o JUsudinb pue sluswsidwl AJBLIDEY JO GNIBA SI0BXE] B
UOREXB ] JO DIBOE AUNOT) BUL AQ DBIBRIO LIBUM SION0 IUSLUSSOSSEDY
SOARIEM JO PDBASHY AUNDT) UINOILLOR
uonexe; o pIRQ AUNoD YoBe AQ PRUSIGEISS (snjea 18w 40 siey) enen anil 1o eBrjuBtIaY BI0S JE POSTBSEE o4 D] PRINbB: 91 Ausdod |Bey  ajON
1055888y XE | JRciniungy % MBLILNS 181 XB | SDI008) WS 80N0S

089'556'068'9

0 00L'G60VEL 020'980°299 009°L0LC 000'€85 201 000'08E LPL'S 09E'eLL L8 0102
9Le'981 160 L 1201 LGLI8G°LL8'9 LG1'G95°01 0 000'910°L98'9 0 00662601 009260299 001'92¥'Z 00¥' L00' ¥0L 006'598'GEL'G 0L GBEBET 8002
YETHHE 080" L 8660 LIELET0L8'Y LIE'Q9ZY'6 0 000'G09'098'9 0 00B'EPS LY 001196289 00L'EYS'e 0¥ 66V 204 008GV LOL'G 00110 veE 8002
LGB VeV L2L9 LL60 £00'189'568'9 £98'G/8'8 0 007'608'9¥8'9 0 00£'9Z6'GLL 00£'G20'€0L 001’016 00L°240'804 00L0LZ 189S 001L'GREEYE 1002
ViIN WIN YIN YIN 0 ViIN VIN VIN WIN VN YIN WIN WIN 8002
90E PG0'9V0'S 0661 L8 LEB'006'Z 861°L0%'S 0 0b9'P25'668' 0 0S¥'2L9'LS 002'G01'86¢ 00E'1585'Z DoELgLEY OPesY GLET 0517185021 5002
GEE LBV OVE'Y £E6'L ZZTEVO618T ZHE'E0C'D 0 ObZ'6EL'ZI8T 0 062'8L0°LS 000’ 88Y 652 00€'998' 00E'EYZ LS (G 2AS T 2 A YA 051266 L1 POOZ
069°219'20L°¢ G641 QECILY'GELT B8I9665 L ¢ B8GL128°LYL'T 0 062'8L5° LS 001°Z0¥'652 6lEVLBT 00V'612'88 OYG'eLR9.ZE 0G4 IBY' 9L L £00Z
GOV HE0'GL'E yo9'L GTLLOEI0LT 99¥ v06'L 0 B8SZEOV'E69'C 0 058'€£0'85 001'€96'9¥C 616'v8L'C 00€'9240'9¢ 0P2'901° 2622 OGR'8ER'TE 200e
OEE'LL6'L06'C 2L5°1 £LYELVL9T yIYELY'E o 852098097 0 06921895 001'669'622 611'8.8°C 008'0v9'GE OYZBOE'S8L'T 08LGLY 204 LO0Z
LPRGLO6L97 22 A" L9E'0E8'5VG'T 801'268'8 0 652'8£6'9€G'C 0 0SE'91L2'ES 00€'8¥S°L1LT 6LLLES'C 007’081 vE OV L0B'621L' T 051'082'66 o00z
{anjep pazienby eI B|QEXE | L SON Diand  Auadoig SUEA WawiEdy fEenshpu; ERTEITG) WIS Ny Poy ulied [BIUBPISS M puUE™ JUEDEA 0g euny
Anony) XE1 J0oU0s UOIBIEA 19N wuexg PESSESSY IO L pepug
DY DRIBLUAST  oainct im0 ] B L JBHA
$587 B

{poyprieun) sies ) (o814 us | 1887
‘Ayadoud BjgeXR ] JO ANJRA JENIOY PUR ATEA DOSSISSY
g 3R UOREINPY o preog AIYSUMOL IOMOH




93.

‘sjuswannbal 8188k yorse U0 PBSE( SIE SDINISS JqOp J0) S81ey

“pjqexe]} UoHEN(BA JON Byl pue J9Bpng au) Yim PoIHWANS St YDIUM WO} 4bY BU} WO} PSIEINDIED S 8lel XE) DISeq SJOUISIp 84l B

nojes uoneliwij yimolb Buipuads ey uey} siow Ag 18bpnq Jou sesk 10Bpngaid ay) pseoxs jou Aew 196png 1Bu $J0UISIP B4}
10 syusuodwon i8Yio 01 pappe uaym Ans) ay] - Ans| xe) puny (eJauab B 1of Jugns UBd JOUISIP Syl JeU) JUNOWE 8y} SHW PS-4/.¥81L VSIN

:8)0N

J0}031j07) XB | [edDiuniy pue SPI00aY 1DUISIC] [80IN0g

G IN
Z-0 9dSv9

L nqiyxd

pue s [ejo L

850'¢ 620°1L L0L0 8260 jerd
296'¢C 89¢°0 £e0°0 9920 £6¢°0 1201 9010 G180 600Z
1682 €20 0€0°0 9920 LLE0 6660 Lo 888°0 8002
G.18¢C 1920 £e00 9920 £6¢°0 8160 eiLo G980 2002
VIN 0000 VIN VIN VIN 9002
VIN 9290 Ze00 £e5°0 L18°0 VIN YIN YIN 5002
VIN §e9'0 200 €690 080 V/IN VIN V/IN #002
YIN €90 L€00 6e¥'0 69270 VIN VIN VIN £002
VIN €090 0v00 6ev°0 2¢L0 vIN VIN YIN 2002
VIN 2860 6£0°0 620 £89°0 VIN WVIN VIN Looe
VIN €890 8¢0°0 86€°0 g0 YIN VIN YIN 0002
‘0¢ sunp

papuzg

BB A

eostd

Auno)n 1syio/Aelgry diysumo . PUIsIg 1081i(] FERINES » 918y Oiseg
UINOWUOW IeMOH 100Udg B0l 19901 uonebiqo
ajey jeuotBay |BIBUSD)
xe| Buiddepan ployss.i4

sajey] buiddeanp

uonesnpa 1o pieog diysumo] |[BMOH

{anjen passesse J0 0O LE 19d 8jed)
(palipneun sieaj [eoSI4 us | ise

sajey xe] Auadoid Buiddenanap pue 10ang
uonesnp3 jo pieog diysumoy |{omon



94,

Jossassy xe | [edioiuniy 9 H4vD 10SI] 82inog

Li-F PN
€-0 gSvD

8- Haiyxy

%09} 000000 § %982 00L'pEPO6L ¢ jejol
%920 005'96%'9 %910 0} 005'0¥E' L1 $ sasudiaiug jog) sibex
%000 %020 6 006'602°¢L $ UDREBID0SSY |[[BMOH
%000 - %120 ] 00Z'8ve vl 3 Ayeay Aer saz
%000 - %220 L 000°'008'v1 3 uonelodior yebie ]
%000 %¥Z0 9 00009591 3 SIBjUB]) BWIOH SBMUT
%¥y 0 000°0¢6°01 %G2°0 S 00009121 $ Ul 'YSN jods(] SLoH
%¥e0 I4 00.'88¥'8 %920 14 000°L¥9'LL 3$ DU ‘SBU0IS Hel 1B
%000 - %0¢°0 € 00929402 3 O 0088y [l seue’]
%150 2 008'v61'¥i %920 I4 00€°¢L6'vT $ 0D 81eisg [eoy diyspusL 4 [OMOH
%0070 - %990 2 000°'gEL 'SP 3 umeisaing 4 g uopied-ojeyng
aneA PosSSassy [leuondpl] anep anje/\ pessassy [reuondo] ERIEIN Jekedxe |

18N 1oUIsIq NUBY passassy 18N PuUsIg Nuey pessassy

[Bj0] JO % ajgexe | [e}J0] JO % s|qexe |

0002 0102

{paupneun)
0By SleoA Ua] pue BB A JUBLIND

‘siohed xe} Ausdold jediduiid

uonesnpyg jo pieog diySuMo| {jOMOH



9s.

‘1eaf jooyos 8y} jo pus sy} 0} Joud payILBo JO Uodn PSJOA JUNOWE 8uj SI }i ‘aoueleq xe) Aladoid aius ay) 1oUISIP |00YDS
8y} 0} Jiwal 0} palinbal s Aedidiunw e 'simels siels Assiar MaN Japup '10308jj0D Xe] jedioiunpy 8y Ag pajos||oo ale sexe) |ooyos 19J0N

"J0}091I00) XB | 0} 1USS I8}
(W0} 4pY) sexe] j10oyos Jo Hoday pue sjedyiual) ay} Buipn|oul Spiodal 1oLISI( (82IN0S

%01°.6 ZL6'/92'6¢el Z8l°/28'6EL oLloz
%99'86 1zz'ziesel EV6'GGL LEL 600¢
%266 £€9'€80'2¢E 119'688'vEL 8002
%86 /6L'6¥9'CTl 869'c18'GZL 1002

- %CS'L6 0.0'GL¥'ZLL vLy'892'GL1L 8002

- %cCS'L6 0L0'Giv'eL vLy'892°GL1L §00¢

- %60°.8 G¥2'890'90} 8v9'2GC 601 y00Z

- %¥Z 86 659'89Z'06 6.6'066'L6 £002

- %81°.6 685 /¥6'08 9SY'LLV'68 Z00g

- %6196 6660619/ v€G'991'64 1002

- %V0'L6 16869589 €88'199'0/ 000¢

SIEENN AnaT jo Junowy 1BBA 1BDS14 8y} ‘0% sunp

jusnbasgng abejuaniad 10} pPaineT SaXE | papug

Ul Suolo8l0D N ETNE JesA
JBB A [BOSI4 84} LYUM P3103jj0n) [e0siH

¢-1 papuedx3 (peyipneun) siea [edsiy ua) yse
-0 9SVO ‘sSUo0v|0 pue salAe] xe] Auedoiyd

6-F NqIyx3 uoneanpg jo pieog diysumo] [|9MoH



96.

Butpunel (diy3) ueld sAuesU| JusWBIeY Alles sepnpu g

Jesk Jepuaies Joud ayj 104 uonendod
pue awooul [euosiad Buisn palgnoied aie sojel 8say ] “ejep uonejndod pue swodul jeuosiad 4oy CL-f PN HAQIYXY 888 e

‘SJUSLUBIEIS [RIDURUL BU} 0} SBI0U U} Ul pUNoy 8g ues Jgep Buipuelsino sjousip sy BuipieBe) siead 1810N

Z7 L SRNPBYDS WAV D OS] 180In0g

%000 ZEL'8se'cg - - $99'9€4'S - B8OV LZ9'4G 0102
- %000 £18'12€' VL - - P15'068'L - 6GELEY'ED 8002
- %000 726'262'8. - - zZ0zZ'ove's - 0Z.1'25v'69 800¢
- %000 166°226'G8 - - 90%'90¢'0} - G8G'91L9'G/ 2002
- %000 0£6'6..'/8 - - 8TY'ESL'9 - Z01'zz9'Le 8002
- %000 9C6'8YZ v6 - - 085'9v8'/ - 96£'20v'98 G00Z
- %000 906'8L1'6L - - 201'820'L - 66.°0V0'CL y002
0gL'0s %200 066°€46'8L - - G6Z'989' - GGZ'188'GL £002
G686y %LL0 STA R TR AIAY - - 169'/68'¢ - v, 18E°CY 2002
£09'6v %0L°0 96Z'2ElL 6y - - GZ.'18G'2 - LIS PYS op L00Z
. BlideD sad  SLuooU} o181 1810 | sases eyde) (SNVYS) sOsSEsT uonedpiped o SPuog ‘0¢ sunp
|Bu0sSIad S8JON {enden 0 uonebyaQ pepu3g
J0 abejuaniod uogedpiuy SSIEDYILBY |Bjsuan 1BBA
puog 1B0SI-4
SBIJIAIDY SSIHAILOY [BIUBWIUIBADD

adA | -sssuisng

MBN Sie9 A {BOSI4 uUs | 1887
L-( 98V9 adA} Aqiqeq Buipugising jo soney

04T Hax3 uopesnp3 Jo pieog diysSuMO | |SMOH



97.

SJUBLIILWIOD (13 $59) mu:m_mm_ 1geq ‘spuog uogebigo jeisuss) 1904n0¢g

CL-f PN HOIUX3 Ul punoy 8q ued ejep uoieindod g
‘elep xe} Apadoid 10} g-p PN HGIYXT 998 B

‘Sjuslusiels [eiouel 8yl 0} $8j0oU By} Ul punoy 8g ued jgep Bupueisine s ousIp oy Buipiebas spesc] (910N
999'6€9'/S 999'6£9'/G 0ioz
FAY A %260 BGE'LEY'EY 69E'LEY'EY 6002
A %L0°L 02L°Z5¥'69 - 0242569 8002
L0§'1 %0L°L 585'919'G/ - G85'919'6, 2002
- %59°¢ AR - L0i'gee'is 8002
YTl %86'C 9G€'20v'98 - 95€'20¥'98 G002
169°1 %00°¢ 8.6'92LZ8 - 816'92.'28 002
zes't %18'C GG /88'GL - GGZ'/88'GL £002
G/8 %991 v.1.18¢E'cy - viLL8E'ey 2002
256 %8L°1 LLG P59y - L8PS oy 1002
£90°} %861 §0L'GZ9'6Y - 50.'529'6Y 000z
q enden) 19d %t@QO._& mcaﬁcmumﬁﬁc suoijonpsg spuog '0g sunpe
40 , SNeA 1qeQ pepuog uonebyao bapug
s|qexe] |enjoy |Bi8uss) 18N [Biauag JEBA
o abejuaniad {e0sid

Buipueising 198 pepuog |eisuss)

payipow g-f PN SiB9A |BOSI4 U] }ISET]
¢-0 98vD Butpueising jqsq papuog je1suag JoN Jo soney

- 3aiyxg uojeonpg jo pieog diysumoy |jomop



98.

"sNnjeA a|gexe) |Bjo} S un yoes Aq 1 BuipiAip pue sailepunog $1ouisip

By} UIyPM SI 1Y) anjeA s|gexe) s iun {ejuswiuianob sayjoue jo uoniod ay) Buuiwisiap Ag palewnss aiem sabejusaiad siqesyddy
‘sanjea Ausdoid passesse ajgexe) Buisn pajewnss st s|qeoldde 1qap Buiddeano jo abejuasiad ey ‘'sexe) Auadoud ypm predal jgep o4 e

G80'LLT'LGL $

uswied Suiddejano yoes jo ‘1gap ay BuiAedal 1oy ajgisuodsal alolaiay) pue ‘uspisal e si jshedxe) Aians

18U} AjdLi JOU S0P SiU} JSASMOH "JUNOOOR OJUI USYE] 8g PINOYS SBSSaUISNG PUB SJUBPISal 8y} AgQ auloq usping jgap ainus

ay} ‘198p wuey-Buo) Aedas pue anssi 0} Ajjige s 30u1sIQq aU) Bulepisuod usym ey} seziubooss ssaooud SIUL ||oMOH O SassauIsng

pue sjuspisal ay) Ag aul10qg s jey) siuawuianob Buiddepano asous jo 1gap BulpueisSiNo auy) 4o uoiod By} $1BUINSS SINPaYDSs SIU ]
10ISICT B4} Jo salepunog oiydesboab syl yum ‘Ued Ui ises| je ‘apiouiod jeyl asoy) ale sjuswuienot Buiddeusno :9JON

3YSgaM dIUSUMO | ||BMOH

‘8010 80UBUI4 AJUNOD YINOWUOW ‘180140 8oUBUI4 dIUSUMO | ||[BMOH :$821N0g

‘uonesedaid Jodal ¥4y JO 8w JB S|geliBAR JOU SEM UOHBWIOI pajepdn Ble( 8002 PasN.

Z5¥'605'69
££9'102'28
9/9'8L¥'eT %LE9'S 607'888'GLY
819'€Z€'0l %Er9 LT 000'0LL'LY
6£C'656'ES %00000} 6£E'666'CS
198Q . lqeoijddy Buipueisino
Buiddepano abejusiad JaeQ
§0 8leysg pajewnss
pajewnsy

payipow g-f N
€-0 dSv9O

LT nquxy

1q9p Buiddejiaao pue joaip [el10L
199Q 108.4Q Jo1IsI |00YDS dIYSUMO | [[SBMOH
1080 Buiddeliano jElo1aNng

AJUNOD) YINOWILIOW

|ooyog ybiH jeuoibay pioyss.
g9p 18410

diysumo | ||1BMOH
saxe} Aladoad yum predal Jqag

IR NENIEL G

0102 ‘0¢ aunr jo sy
1990 S9ALDY [ejuswiuianos) BurddeanQ jo soijey

uoneanp3 jo pieog diysumo] [[OMOH



99.

SPUISIP JBUI0 10§ sjgesidde 8g PINOM SHLLIL 9% JBUIO JOLISID 8 NIl M € 10} 81-p2 V8L WEIN AQ jes Juu) e

L1 BINPBUDS dAYD SPpJ00BY JOIISI( PUE $3IGBIEY 10 JOBASAY

BRN0S

Ui Jep o ebewenisd & se
W Buy o3 sgeondde sp U RIoy

wfew e eban

%1508 %9L'GE %0% '8¢ %9L LY %186y %E60G %8y 19 %8y 6S YEG P %LE BY
191'610°Lb1 $  6880/6GEL  $  cl¥s060¢cL §  Gievel'B0L  § 8sEolees ¢ 09Z's5Ce8 § 80979815 $ ¥ZG669LG $ 0SB CYOPS §  D90VIL LV §
088'9/5 %9 e 269'6L 2252691 72£'269'6L 201'229'18 95 20V 98 816'9/1¢8 G52 /88°GL vLLL8s 'y LIS vYS o
Lp0'968 412 $  11Z'€99'1iT $ PBLUES9SL  $  /£9'088'E8)  $ 00S'885'G9L  $ 919/G9'691 6 98GPYOvELS 6L1'99G'LZV §  YZLVZYI6 S LL9'89TV6 §
0102 6007 8002 1002 9002 5002 $00Z £002 Z00Z 1002
916,071 §  [ogl utbrewt 1gap (ebe7
088'8.5'v9 ol 198p 10040s papuoy JoN
e 1y0'959'11Z [a]

PoIipOW /- TN @

- uauxg

18e'10z'6502 ¢ el

€v1'v09'691 12 § vl

$G2'69£'080°L 8002
91£'981 160 L 6002
£15'8¥0'¥66'9 0L0Z

sISBq UONEN|BA paziienbl

sfieiane J0 % ¢) MUl 10

Ausdouid sigexe) Jo uogeniea paziienbe sbeieay

6007 Je9A jeosi4 10) uogenoe) ubew g9Q feben

Wy o) sigesiidde wep eu B0 L

W e

SIBBA |BOSI4 UB] JSRT
‘uoneuLiopul uibieR 1geq (e6s7
uopeanp3 Jo pivog diysumo] {jBMoH



100.

Juswidoleas( 82J0pHOAA PuB Joge jo 1daq MN 8ul Ag pepinoid eep wiswhodwaun 5
JUBWIBIOU 940 U0 PASeq SWoJUl [BUOSIBd 9
BLIdOAB( B0IOPUOAA PuR JogeT o 3da(] PN 8t Ag pepiacid uoijewIom) uonemdod ,

195IN0g
uonRiBdad Podsl Y-y J0 B 1B BIGRIBAR 10U BIBC DLOZ,

- « 0102

%Z'6 09Y'1LG 0Ly vy.'689°2 16215 6002

%S '€ 196’6y L1¥'959'695'2 £6E'1S 800¢

%E'¥ 9068y 0L9'eLZ'ver' G8L'0% L002

%00 - - - 900¢

%E'e S00'vy 006'8L5'064"4 08.'6¢ g00z

%6’ LZY'ey 0L6'666'9L1'2 0£1 05 002

%Y'S 6Y8'ZY 0/£'020'8vL'2 0£1'08 £002

%C'Y y89'cy 028'698'241L°2 548 6% Z00e

%8¢ 0L¥'ey OLY'ZrZ o6l ' €096y 1002

»orey o Btoou| o (s1Bjjop . onendod IBBA
wswhodwaun jeuosiad JO spuesnoyy)
eyuden Jod SWOdU| [BUCSIBY

pPayipow - N Sleaj |BoSI4 usj 1se
1-3 A4SV SO1IS1IEIS dIou0d3 pue syderbowag

vL-0 HgIyx3 uonelnpy Jo pieoy QEMC..SGP HELS ]



101.

JuswAodwse
[B30} J0 Jusoiad g yoeal 0} paiinbal aie Jamaj ssajun ‘siokojdwa 1sabie| usy sy apnjoul PINOYS BiNPayos Sy

190IN0Sg
%00°0 - %000 850'C
%000 - -
%000 - -
%000 - -
%000 - %000 0l V/IN VIN
%000 - %000 6 Y/N VIN
%000 - %000 8 VIN YIN
%000 - %000 L g9 HBN-Y
%000 - %000 9 143 spewied
%000 - %000 g 061 SOMOT
%000 - %000 14 5] A joda swon
%000 - %000 € 08c OMOH JO diySumo |
%000 - %000 Z 162 HeN-EM
%000 , - %000 L 886 uonesnp3 Jo pieog diysumo| ||BmoH
swiojdwig (jeuondo) yuey saahojdwig juswiodwy (jeuondo) saaAojduig FEY I R
1ejol jejol juey
jo abejuasiad Jo abejusaiad
1002 0102
MIN oby siesA uaj pue iesj jJuaing
¢4 d8SV9 ‘siafojdwig jediouny

SIrIqIuXa uonjeoanpg jo pieog diysumo] |jomoH



102.

SPIODOYN 1DULOSIBd 10UISIC] 1824108

886 ZL0'L 6ELL 1G1'L il €/4L°1 SOl 2901 1101 £86 1ejo 4
BIED PO
BUINIBG POO
- - - - - - - - - - sjooUns [Boedg
¥9 $9 ZL 22 GL S G G 9. Ll uofjepodsuen jidnd
y0l 004 191 §91 8.1 81 Z81 8¢€L Lel 0oeL SduBUSIIBU pUR SuoKelado JuBld
vl Gl Gi Gl 91 gt gt 9t Gi Gl $O0IAIZS SARIYSUILIPE ssausng
08 99 €9 £9 99 G9 g9 ¥9 ¥3 ¥9 SAVINIBS DAJRHSIIWPE 00U
Gl Gl 91 Li L A L1 Pl Zi [ SBOIAISS SALRIHSUILUDE jRISUSD)
€8 ¥8 86 66 104 10t §6 8 9L 89 SBOIAIBS PRJE]8 UONONASUL g WBPMIS
- - - ) - - - - - - uoging
‘saopueg woddng
- - - - - - - - - - swesbosd uoneonpe BuinuuoINPY
- - - - - - - - - - swelboid jooyos oygnduoN
- - - - - - - - - UORDNASUL IBYID
- - - - - - - - - - {BUOIEOOA
- - - - - - - - - - uofieonps [enads Jayi0
82 8982 98¢ 18¢ 68¢ 68¢ 082 144 €ee 1474 uonEINPa Eoadg
9.¢ 06¢ Y4 (2% 4 4% 4 A% 4 Gy a4 1454 404 ienbay
LIORONASU]
WeiBsigjuonoun g
010z 6002 8002 1002 9002 $00Z 002 £002 2002 1002
MON {(pauipneun) siee ) jeosiy uay se
L4 GSVO ‘wesBoiquonoung Ag seakojdwiz 10181 Jusjeanby swn-|ing

gl-r Hayx3 uoyesnpy jo pieog diysSumo | [JOMOH



103.

(SuS) Aewwing seisiBay |00USS BU} IO PALIBIGO 218 SoUBpuUSE Aep sfsiane pue Juswioue Alep sbessay q
zg 'sposloid pue Agyno eyded pue 80iAIaS JgOp $59] Saunupusdxs ele] jenbe sainyipusdxe Bunesadp e

TUNOD JDLISIP J8GOI00 [BNUUE WO PBSEY JUSWI0IUT (810N

LT 21~ SeNpayos pue YSSY 'SpIo0s] IDUISI)  18804n0g

IOINIGH %00 001~ 8 et %TY'G 115Gl YO AGL P01 Gii'e 010z
BT 56 %HGE T~ G269 €089 el 0ps %850 €Lyl Svy Loy L0 858'9 8002
%Y 66 %v6 T S¥l'9 6902 €Ll [44°] %VE'8 629'vL £2LvPZP0L 24N 8002
%€ 56 %610 yv6'9 £82'/ el £Ps %l L 205t IBO'8LY eS8 892/ 1002
%P 66 %YL 0~ 8EB'O 692°L el 898 %LYY 20921 2LV LIVLE 8622 B00C
W 66 %501~ ZE6'9 6.2, el 896 %B88'€ B6E0°TL YEL'BBZ B Ve L G002
%t 96 %alL- 1002 95¢°L el LEG %G9'L1L 68G'LL LOB'OVE'G8 gLy 002
%8 6 %8e L §80'L vyl it 125 %LL°S 08€'0L 9YBZO0°LL [Z4 ) £00e
%5 v6 Y%ll 0~ 986'9 Lye L vl 2158 %8l L Pi8'8 LOLBLY L [FAS 2002
%0 66 %¥yZ yZ0'.L 86€°L vl G08 %8Z€ 8016 284 Lye i 12%7 L002
%B6'v6 %Gyl €98'9 z2e' L Pl 4514 %L0'LL B18'8 208'8Z0'v8 082’2 0002
%e 66 %000 15.0°9 6112 YIN Y/N i43u# P96'L GE6°L86'95 0LV 8861
ebejuadiag JudwjoIUT “{vav) “(3av) oney e1s Buyoeay abueyn dng « SoInypusdxy JuswijjoIuy 1eDA
asuepusyy Aneq obesany aouepuany juswijosug ndngd 184 obriussiog 19d 1800 Buneradp 1e0si4
uapms ut ebueyn v, e ebeiony Aneq
abeioay

vl ZL-TIN {paupneun) sieo) 120814 us] ise

9-4 gSYO sonspels Buneiedo

LT Haxg uofeONnp3 JO pieog diysumo [[omoH



104.

006 008 008 006 008 006 0086 008 008 Ob6
090'6 080’6 090’6 090'6 090’6 0806 090'6 0808 030'6 080’6
000’8 0002 0008 0008 000’8 0008 000'8 0008 0008 ooh'8
£59 BG5S 958 006 B8YG - - - - -
LG 215 215 LLG LL5 118 - -
00001 000°0Z1 000021 000’021 000024 000024 - - - -
848 PEDL 210 1407 2801 - - - - -
086 086 086 088 086 088 086 086 086 086
000281 000 291 000°Z81 000294 000294 000281 000291 000291 ono'ZeL 0B0'2aL
678 658 208 196 956 - - - -
006 006 008 008 006 006 006 006 006 008
00018t PO0L8L 000181 000'19} 000191 000’191 000191 000181 0001 8L [EeeRg:l
16% 6Ly 05y 4214 Ll - - - -
26¢ 8% Z26¢ 68 268 68 [4si4 68 pacis 268
18168 8168 48168 18168 19168 i81'68 /8168 181'68 19168 18168
- GZ¢ 6528 25¢ v9e - - - - -
8¢ z6g 8¢ 26¢ 26¢ 68 268 6% (4529 [453
Or6'eL oveeL ovB'eL ovB'eL ov6'eL [ Ov6'EL op6'eL OPe'EL ovees
414 £16 [A4] 195 189 - - - - N
0.4 G0L G0L S0L G0L S0L S04 504 S04 0L
£69'66 66868 668'66 86866 66866 66865 668865 568'65 668 66 86866
50v 69€ gy 65Y 88y - " - - -
Ly Ly LLy Ly L1y Ly [¥A4 Ly Ly Ly
058'6.L 0S8'6.L 068'6L 058'6L 05862 05864 068'6.L 058'6L 058'8L DGR
€14 Lps €55 194 €L8 " - - - "
085 055 056 095 059 0%4 059 054 %5
£86'C6 £86'26 £B6'Z6 £86'26 £86'25 £86'26 £86'C8 €86 26 £86'C6
L8 896 €89 G0% 6% - - - - -
5% 059 069 08S 089 068 089 068 069 055
L8168 18188 /8168 181'68 48168 18168 181'68 18168 1868 18168
Ze 085 €85 048 G55 - - - - N
0es 0es 0£s 0es 0gs 0es 0es - -
00084 000’84 000'8L 000'82 000'8L 000'8L 000'82 - -
18y e 9ee ove iy Liv fA%4 Ly Ly Ly
Ly Ly FA% 4 Liv Ly 004 00L 004 je07a 004
009’89 00889 00989 00989 009'89 00989 009'89 009'89 00889 009’98
295 658 26¢ 16 89¢ - - - -
454 12494 254 ey ey ey ey 14 ey ey
00v'0L 00V'0L 00v'0L 00V'0L 0D0Y'0L 00%'04 00¥ 0L o0p 04 0004 o0y 0L
LEE 8Ly 9sv 9Ly 28y - - - N
184 185 185 185 185 Ao 189 - - -
000'84 00084 0o0'8L 000'8L 0008/ 000'8L 000'8L - - -
0102 6002 00T £002 900T 002 vooz £00Z 2002 00T

R
p3ESVO

gi-r Hamxd

YESY SRIO0BS DUIST BNeS

© = OHAIDS BIRpIY
§ = fIEIIBUST
0L0OZ 0% 8UnT j8 SI00UYDS JO Jaquiny

o saenbs
SBOIJC) BOUBLBILIE}]

j@e4 slenbs
uonepodsuR |

Wed sienby
BUtping UOHEASIIALRY
Eie]

JlsugoIuD
(syaprys) Aunedern
1884 Blenby

OOUE BIPPIY JEUOIBYY

s
(sptapms) Aoeden
B84 Blenbs

WINsy |00LIDS SIDEIRY 1B/MOk
JUBLUOMT
(spueprs) Ameden
a4 sienbg

($BEL) YHON [00UDS SIREY 18M0H

FER B
{sjumprys) Ameden
J8E g BEnby
{2061) woyLy ABUslsg LoUne |
JUBUHO T
(spapnys) Aypeden
ey alenbg
(FGaL) 100UDS ARSI IBNINOS
Bl
{(syuapns) Ageden
1664 BIENDS
{PORL) IOOUDS ABIUBLIRIR UAMDILEY
BT
(syuspnys) Apoeden
e
(P ) omss Dpliswsy Angmen
JUBUHRY
(sssprys) Apneder
jasg alenby
(OB} 100UREs AREIUBLIBIY B8lid () pue”

(vo61) eowns Aeuewss Bugsur)
JUBUHOAIT
(spispms) Aloeden)
a4 aenbg
1813 BALBBID)
JUBUOIE
(spampms) Apseden
188 4 Blenbs
(geal) eoyns Ause Busply
L usELoIL Y
{sjuaprs) Auoede)
10 plenby
(g L) 100UDS ANTURLIBIT YoUDY
LBl
(s1u8pNs) Apoede)
jea 4 sienbe
joousE Amuawald Biydiepy
Aapplatiegs

JOOYDE AL

SIRDA |ROSI UBY 1527
uoneLLoU BUPHNG 10048
UORRINPT §0 PIvn dIISUM | 1BMOH



105.

"% 48 10040S By} SBWI | [B10] 40} JeaA JO puS Je SBOURISGUINOUT PUE SBINJIPUSdXT [eNjoy 92IN0S

8/8'¢l8 % ¥80°229'L ¢ 966 ¥e0'2$ 964'19¢ ¢ S00'99.°L $ zZie'gzL’l % Z80'v09'L $ 1810 puein
- B N B B - - s8jijioed 1BUIO
2/8'¢c18 $80'L29'} 986'v£0'2 96.'19¢ G00'99.'L zie'gzs'l Z60'v09'L saioe 4 |004YoS [8jo |
- 51208 Z56'61 969'vy 044791 % 08191 $ 68£'26L ¢ VIN [00UOS SIPPIN [BUOWSIN [|oMOH
£02'86 862'6. 918'6, 659'2S 8/6'9zz ¢ Iriiez  $ 508'soz ¢ VIN UIN0g [00YIS SIDPIN HBMOH
199'80¢ 661981 201’82 LPe'vh o91'6zz ¢ pec'ozz % 2zs'vor ¢ VIN UHION {00438 3ipPIA oMo
981'98 96G°/61 611'221 906’81 089'vzZL  $ BL0'2ZL $ 6¥Z'cLL  $ YIN 100YDg uone |
2268'69 P0B'661 ¥6Z'8.2 906'gL Le'sor  $ 201°104 $ 6£8°cH $ VIN 10042S pieyInog
0£8'26 GE8'60Y 889'962 906'81 169’681  $ 0L2'9¢gl 3 2 R TA S VIN 100UDS umoLLBRY
ove'Zy Z88'¥8 Y66 pL 208'81L ZL9'LLL 8 622'601 $ 6/€'10L ¢ YIN 100Uog Angmey
cri've ¢ 208'0L 3 V6L'12E § 906'8L $ 8/6'6ZL % 02’121 $ Loo'sll ¢ jooyng sauld,0 pue
£0c'es ¢ OF/'96 $ £69'vPe $ 906'81 3 089'%2L ¢ 8L0'zzZL $ 8rZ'eLl 3 jooyos Bulgeun
B85R'GL & 096 9 3 62189 ¢ 901'61 $ 6cL'60L % 0L8'001 $ £€1'66 $ JOOUOS BijInuSSID
66Y'es ¢ 288°9/ $ G6.'151 % 906'81 3 ¥68'G6 $ L¥8'¢6 $ Z0L'18 $ 1004OS eusply
ypO'8y  $ 0S¥'09 $ v10°0LL $ 92e'vE $ 99¢'86 $ 192'96 $ 8L 68 $ 1004og youply
zzl'sl  $ 28’19 3 10'L9 § 978'v¢ $ BEL'BOL  $ 018'901 3 ££1'68 $ V/IN j00uog eiydiepy
#0027 o0z 9002 2002 8002 6002 0L0¢ (s) # 108l01d saiijioe jooyos
XXX-192-000-1 1
SILLIMNMOVA TO0HOS 04 FONVYNILNIVIN AFHINDAY - STUNLIANIAXT a3LNSIHMLISIANND
a3 L1ANvNN
SHUVYIA TWOSIH AAIL LSV
SAILINOVY4 TOOHOS €04 JONVYNALINIVIN G3dIND3Y 40 I1NAIHDS
ONN4 TVHEINTD
6L-r LORLSIA TO0OHOS dIHSNMOL T13MOH



HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

J-20

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
UNAUDITED
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible

Utica National Property Blanket Building & Contents-

Replacement Cost Values $ 193,810,075 3 1,000
Utica National Umbrella Excess Liaability

-Each Occurrence $ 20,000,000 $ -

Aggregate Limit of Liability $ 20,000,000

General Liability Each Occurrence $ 1,000,000 $ -

Aggregate Limit of Liability $ 3,000,000
Utica National Automotive Coverage

-Combined Single Limit $ 1,000,000 $ -

-Hired/Non-Owned $ 1,000,000 $ -

-Uninsured & Underinsured $ 1,000,000 3 -
Chubb Insurance Group  Inland Marine

-Electronic Data Processing Equipment $ 4,000,000 $ 1,000

-Additional Valuable Papers $ 100,000 3 1,000
Utica National Crime Coverage

-Blanket Employee coverage $ 250,000 3 250

-Money & Securities On Premises $ 3,000 $ 250

Money & Securities Off Premises 3 3,000 $ 250

Forgery or Alteration 3 100,000 3 -
Utica National Boiler & Machinery Coverage Included -

Source: District Records
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT J-20
INSURANCE SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

107.

UNAUDITED
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
Utica National Board of Education
-Educators Legal Liabilitiy
Each Loss $ 1,000,000 $ 5,000
Aggregate $ 2,000,000 $ -
Utica National Fidelity Bonds
-Treasurer of School Monies $ 500,000

-Business Administrator/Board Secretary $ 50,000

Brown & Brown Workers' Compensation
-Professional - 60,281,927
-Non-Professional - 7,448,418
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.PA., RM.A., P.S.A. (19591992 Telecopier:
ROBERT A. HULSART, CPA, RMA., P.S.A ( ) (732) 280-8888 2807 Huriey Pond Road - Suite 100
. P.O. Box 1409
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR.,C.PA, PS.A. e-mail: Wall, New Jersey 07713-1409
rah@monmouth.com (732) 881-4990

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR,, C.P.A, PS.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

K-1

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township, New Jersey

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the Board of Education of the
Howell Township School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2010. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverament Auditing Standards.
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Howell Township Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Howell Township Board of
Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies. that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that 1s more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not
be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. as
defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Howell Township Board of
Education’s general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of general-
purpose financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee. management,
the Howell Township Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Hulsart

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 18, 2010
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.PA., RM.A,, PS.A. (1959-1992) Telecopier: )

ROBERT A. HULSART, C.PA., RMA, PS.A. (732) 280-8888 2807 Hurley g"g‘;f;’jgg‘ Suite 100

ROBERT A. HULSART, JR.C.PA, PS.A. email Wall, New Jersey 07719-1409
rah@monmouth.com (732) 681-4990

RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR., C.PA, PS.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND

NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Howell Township School District

County of Monmouth

Howell Township, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Howell Township School
District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major
federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2010. Howell Township Board of
Education’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the
responsibility of the Howell Township Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Howell Township Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: the audit requirements as
prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey: OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations. and New Jersey OMB’s
Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Granis and State Aid. Those
standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Howell
Township Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Howell
Township Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion. the Board of Education of the Howell Township School District. in the County of
Monmouth, State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30,
2010.



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Howell Township School District is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Howell Township Board of Education’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Howell Township
Board of Education’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. Howell
Township Board of Education’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Howell Township Board of
Education’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Howell Township Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Hulsart

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322

Robert A. Hulsart and Company

October 18, 2010
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SCHEDULES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

K-5
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 1: General

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance present the activity of all federal and
state financial assistance programs of the Board of Education, Howell Township School District.
The Board of Education is defined in Note 1{A) to the Board’s general-purpose financial
statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed other government agencies is
included on the schedule of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are
presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of programs
recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and
those recorded in the special revenue fund, which are presented using the budgetary basis of
accounting. These bases of accounting are described in the Note 1(C) to the Board’s general-
purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

The general-purpose financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for
the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in
which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year,
whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when
expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual
basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97.(A3521). For GAAP purposes, that
payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is
presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($94,857)
for the general fund and ($273,320) for the special revenue fund. See Note 1 for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s general
purpose financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented below:
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)
Federal State Total

General Fund $5,102,294 35,855,305 40,957,599
Special Revenue Fund 3,317,106 249,918 3.567.024
Debt Service Fund 1,601,920 1,601,920
Food Service Fund 452,517 26,324 478.841
Total Financial Assistance $8.871.917 37,733,467 46,605,384
NOTE 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: Other

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2010. TPAF Social Security
Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2010. Revenues and
expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received
and current year distributions respectively.



Financial Statement Section

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Part 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

(A) Type of auditor's report issued:

(B) Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were reportable conditions(s) identified that were

not considered to be material weaknesses?

(C) Noncompliance material to general purpose financial

statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

(D) Dollar threshold used to determine Typed A programs:
(E) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

(F) Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

(G) Internal control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were reportable condition(s) identified that were
not considered to material weaknesses?

(H) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 (section .510(a))?

K-6

Unqualified

Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X No

$300,000

Yes No
Unqualified

Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X No

(I} Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)
84.027

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

1.D.E.A. Part B

84.391

I.D.E.A Part B-ARRA

84.394

ARRA-SFSF-ESF

10.555

National School Lunch Program
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HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010
Part 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)
State Awards Section
(J) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: $300,000
(K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
(L) Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
(M) Internal control over compliance:
(1) Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
(2) Were reportable condition(s) identified that were
not considered to material weaknesses? Yes X No
(N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. OMB's Circular 04-047 Yes X No
(O) ldentification of major programs:
GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
10-495-034-5120-014 Transportation Aid
10-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Aid
10-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
10-495-034-5095-002 Reimbursed Social Security
10-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
10-495-034-5120-044 Extraordinary Aid

10-495-034-5120-017 Debt Service Aid Type 11

117.



118.
HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

K-6
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the reportable conditions. material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing Standards.

Finding: None

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A




HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04.

FEDERAL AWARDS
Finding: N/A

Federal program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Management's response: N/A

STATE AWARDS
Finding: None

State program information: N/A

Criteria or specific requirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

Questioned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Management's response: N/A
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Prior Audit Findings:

HOWELL TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

None
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